
Vestavia Hills
City Council Agenda 

August 11, 2014 
5:00 PM 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Brad Allison, Altadena Valley Presbyterian Church 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance  
5. Announcements, Candidate and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports
8. Presentation – Jack Norris, Pruitt Place 
9. Approval of Minutes – July 28, 2014 (Work Session) and July 28, 2014 (Regular 

Meeting)

Old Business

10. Resolution Number 4613 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase 
Radio Equipment From E-911 Special Funds And To Reimburse The General Fund For 
A Prior Purchase Of Radio Equipment  (public hearing)

11. Resolution Number 4614 – Annexation – 90-Day – 4624 Old Looney Mill Road; Eric 
And Meredith Mann, Owners (public hearing)

12. Ordinance Number 2522 – Annexation – Overnight – 4624 Old Looney Mill Road; Eric 
and Meredith Mann, Owners (public hearing)

13. Resolution Number 4615 – Annexation – 90-Day – 1512 Oak Leaf Trail; Lot 12, 
Gresham Woods; Nicholas Elkhoury, Owner; Paul Norris, Representing   (public
hearing)

14. Ordinance Number 2523 – Annexation – Overnight – 1512 Oak Leaf Trail, Lot 12, 
Gresham Woods; Nicholas Elkhoury, Owner; Paul Norris, Representing   (public
hearing)

15. Resolution Number 4616 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2429 Dolly Ridge Road; Lot 36, 
Rocky Ridge Estates; Lila P. Williams, Owner; Earl Gibson, Representing   (public
hearing)



16. Ordinance Number 2524 – Annexation – Overnight - 2429 Dolly Ridge Road; Lot 36, 
Rocky Ridge Estates; Lila P. Williams, Owner; Earl Gibson, Representing  (public
hearing)

17. Resolution Number 4617 – Annexation – 90-Day – 3633 Dabney Drive; Lot 37, Altadena 
Forest Estates, 2nd Sector; William Jenkins, Owner; Sarah Macon, Representing    

18. Ordinance Number 2525 – Annexation – Overnight - 3633 Dabney Drive; (public 
hearing) Lot 37, Altadena Forest Estates, 2nd Sector; William Jenkins, Owner; Sarah 
Macon, Representing (public hearing)

New Business  

19. Resolution Number 4620 – A Resolution Determining That Certain Personal Property Is 
Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purposes And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said 
Surplus Property 

20. Resolution Number 4621 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Enter Into An Agreement For Landscape Permit (MB-05) And A Permit To Construct A 
Turnout (BM-111-B) With Alabama Department Of Transportation (ALDOT) For 
Improvements Along Highway 31 At The New City Hall Site 

21. Resolution Number 4623 – A Resolution For Approval Of The Final 10% Of The 
General Fund Budget, Special Fund Budget And Capital Fund Budget For Fiscal Year 
2013-2014

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

22. Resolution Number 4622 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver Agreements To Expedite And Facilitate The Development Patchwork Farms  
(public hearing) 

23. Ordinance Number 2527 – An Ordinance Declaring Certain Real Property As Surplus 
And Directing The City Manager To Execute And Deliver Documents For The Sale Of 
Said Property (public hearing)

24. Resolution Number 4624 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement With Sain Associates For Engineering, Surveying And Design Of 
A New Roadway Located Adjacent To Vestavia Hills Elementary At Cahaba Heights 
School (public hearing)



First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

25. Ordinance Number 2526 – Conditional Use Approval – Conditional Use Approval – 
4871 Sicard Hollow Road; To Extend An Existing 120’ Stealth Monopole (Flagpole) To 
A Maximum Height Of 140’; City Of Vestavia Hills, Owners; New Cingular Wireless 
PCS, LLC D/B/A AT&T Mobility, Andy Rotenstreich, Representing (public hearing)

26. Resolution Number 4625 – A Resolution Authorizing A Special Economic Development 
Agreement By The City Of Vestavia Hills And Northport Holding LLC  (public hearing)

27. Resolution Number 4626 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Construction Of A 
Pedestrian Bridge And Certain Other Improvements At McCallum Park  (public hearing)

28. Resolution Number 4627 – A Resolution Authorizing A General Fund Budget, A Special 
Fund Budget And A Capital Fund Budget For Fiscal Year 2014-2015 (public hearing)

29. Resolution Number 4628 – A Resolution Electing To Provide A One-Time Bonus To 
City Retirees Pursuant To Alabama Act No. 2014-429 

30. Citizens Comments  
31. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

CITY COUNCIL 

WORK SESSION 

MINUTES

JULY 28, 2014 

 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a work session on this date at 4:30 PM 
following posting/publishing pursuant to Alabama law.  The Mayor called the work 
session to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 

   John Henley 
      George Pierce 
      Jim Sharp 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

      Dan Rary, Police Chief 

 The Mayor welcomed the persons in attendance. 

 The Mayor indicated that the Council needed to go into executive session for the 
possible purchase/sale of property. He stated that the session should last an estimated 15 
minutes and opened the floor for a motion. 

MOTION Motion to move into executive session for an estimated 60 minutes for the 
purchase/sale of property was made by Mr. Henley.  Mr. Pierce seconded 
the motion with the roll call vote as follows: 

Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion Carried 

 The Council entered into executive session at 4:35 PM.  The Council exited 
executive session at 4:57 PM. 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 4:58 PM. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 2

Attested by: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES

JULY 28, 2014 

 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following:

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr.  
Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce
John Henley 

      Jim Sharp 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Conrad Garrison, City Planner 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Lt. Kevin York, Police Dept. 
      Jim St. John, Fire Chief 
      Terry Ray, Asst. Fire Chief 

 Invocation was given by Joe Slane, Southminster Presbyterian Church, followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION 

� Steve Ammons stated that he is running for Jefferson County Tax Collector and 
asked for support in the November general election. 

� Mr. Ammons welcomed Park Board members Tommy Dazzio, Tommy Coggin 
and Ann Smyth to the meeting. 

PROCLAMATION

 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating the month of August 2014 as 
“Fire Fighter Appreciation Month.”  City Manager Jeff Downes read the proclamation 
and presented it to Lt. Ryan Farrell. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 2

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

� None.

COUNCILOR REPORTS 

� Mayor Zaragoza reminded everyone that the annual Back-To-School sales tax 
holiday begins this Friday and lasts through Sunday night. 

� The Mayor stated that Della Fancher has resigned from the City’s Planning and 
Zoning Commission after several years.  He stated that Brian Wolfe has agreed to 
finish her appointment on the Commission. 

� Mr. Pierce stated that the Chamber of Commerce will host a Back-To-School 
celebration in Oliver Square on August 15 with lots of activities for the kids.  He 
invited everyone to attend. 

� Mr. Henley stated that Sheila Phillips, the new Superintendent of Education, will 
officially take her position August 1. 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 Mr. Turner presented the City financial reports for month ending June 2014.  He 
read and explained the balances. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 The minutes of June 10, 2014 (Work Session), June 14, 2014 (Regular Meeting) 
and June 18, 2014 (work session) were presented for approval.

MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the meeting of June 
10, 2014 (Work Session), June 14, 2014 (Regular Meeting) and June 18, 
2014 (work session) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Pierce and 
second by Mr. Ammons.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

 The Mayor asked that the rules be suspended in order to allow consideration of 
the New Business items listed on the agenda first.  He opened the floor for a motion. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 3

MOTION Motion to suspend the rules and allow consideration of New Business 
items first was made by Mr. Ammons.  Second was by Mr. Sharp.  Roll 
call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

NEW BUSINESS 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4607 

Resolution Number 4607 – Alcohol License – Edward Scott LLC d/b/a Snapper 
Grabbers Seafood Market At 521 Montgomery Highway, Suite 101; 
For The Off Premise Sale Of 050 – Retail Beer And 070 – Retail Table 
Wine; Edward K. Scott And Pamela J. Scott, Executives   (public
hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4607 was by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 Mr. Downes stated that this is a request for off-premise sale of beer and wine for 
the Snabber Grabbers Seafood Market located nearby.  He stated the Police Department 
has reviewed and found no problems with the request. 

 Lt. York concurred. 

 Edward Scott, owner was present in regard to this request. 

 Mr. Pierce asked about training of employees. 

 Mr. Scott stated they have a strict training policy and will identify anyone that 
appears younger than 30. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question.

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 4

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4608 

Resolution Number 4608 - A Resolution Authorizing The Purchase Of Radio 
Equipment For The Purpose Of Transmitting And Receiving 
Dispatch Calls By Utilizing E-911 Funds By The Vestavia Hills City 
Council As The City’s Emergency Communications District Board 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4608 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 Mr. Downes stated that this is a request for action by the City’s ECD Board 
concerning emergency communications.  There have been some AG opinions that allows 
the purchase of radios for dispatching to be purchased from special E-911 funds but this 
needs to be ratified by the Council as the City’s ECD Board.  This Resolution ratifies that 
decision.

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question.

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4611 

Resolution Number 4611 – Alcohol License – Red Lobster Restaurants, LLC D/B/A 
Red Lobster 0046 For The On-Premise Sale Of 020 – Restaurant 
Retail Liquor At 1030 Montgomery Highway; Carl B. Richmond, 
Horace G. Dawson III, Red Lobster Management LLC, Executives  
(public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4611 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 Mr. Downes stated that this is a request for on-premise restaurant retail liquor 
license transfer because of a change in ownership of the Red Lobster restaurant.  The 
Police Department has reviewed the request and found no problems. 

 Lt. York concurred. 

 Daniel Landum, manager of Red Lobster was present in regard to this request.  He 
explained the restructuring of the restaurant’s ownership and indicated there’d be no 
changes to the menu or services already provided. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 5

 Mr. Pierce asked about training of employees. 

 Mr. Landum stated they have always had a good training policy and will continue 
in those efforts. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question.

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4612 

Resolution Number 4612 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 
To Enter Into An Agreement For Landscape Permit (MB-05) And 
Maintenance (MB-06) With Alabama Department Of Transportation 
(ALDOT) For Landscape Improvements At Interstate-65 And 
Highway 31 

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4612 was by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Sharp. 

 Mr. Downes stated that this is a request for commitments for landscaping 
maintenance at the intersection of I-65 and Montgomery Highway following the 
installation of the City’s “gateway” improvements. 

 Mr. Sharp asked if this will prevent ALDOT from continuing to use this area as a 
staging area for construction. 

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4618 

Resolution Number 4618 – A Resolution Accepting the 2012-2013 Audit for the City 
of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 6

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4618 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Pierce. 

 Mr. Downes stated that this is presentation of the City’s Financial audit for fiscal 
year 2013. 

 Jason Harp, Carr Riggs and Ingram, presented the City’s Audit and explained the 
results, footnotes, comments and concerns. He answered questions from the Council 
concerning the City’s financial position. 

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

OLD BUSINESS 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4605 

Resolution Number 4605 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 
And Deliver An Agreement With Goodwyn Mills And Cawood For 
Preliminary Geotechnical Work At Wald Park (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4605 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 Mr. Downes stated that this is a request to do geo-technical work at Wald Park to 
assist in gathering collection to evaluate soil conditions at Wald Park through borings in 
various areas.  He stated this is a Phase I of environmental studies of the park at an 
estimated expense of $11,500. 

 Mr. Ammons stated that there are also historical issues concerning the park and 
that information needs to also be gathered.

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question.

The Mayor called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 7

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2503 

Ordinance Number 2503 – Rezoning – 1836 Shades Crest Road; Rezoning From 
Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning For 
Annexation; Bradshaw Family, LLC; Michael Wedgworth, 
Representing (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2503 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Pierce. 

 Mr. Downes stated that this property was annexed in the late 90’s and never 
compatible rezoned to a City zoning classification.  He stated that the property is being 
sold for planned construction of two homes and needs to be rezoned in order to allow the 
platting of the property. 

 Mr. Sharp stated that the Planning Commission recommended that the property be 
zoned as presented. 

 Johnnie Corretti, representing the owner, stated he is in the process of purchasing 
the property in order to construct two homes. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question.

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2504 

Ordinance Number 2504 – Conditional Use Approval – 2564 Altadena Road; 
Conditional Use Approval To Allow Up To 12 Urban Hens; Will 
Roth, Owner  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2504 was by Mr. Sharp and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 Mr. Downes stated that this request is for Conditional Use Approval for up to 12 
chickens.  He stated that the owner has had a few of the animals on his property for about 
3 years but never realized he wasn’t in compliance until the issue was raised in local 
newspapers.  The resident lives on a large 12-acre parcel. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 8

 Mr. Sharp concurred that the Planning Commission has recommended that the 
Conditional Use be approved as presented to bring the property into compliance. 

 Mr. Roth explained that he came forward when he realized that keeping the 
animals was not allowed within the zoning.  He indicated he has about six hens at the 
moment and they have never had any problems with predators but would stay alert in 
case he does.  He stated he has read the stipulations in the Ordinance and finds no 
problems with compliance. 

 Mr. Pierce asked about private covenants on the property. 

 Mr. Roth stated he lives on acreage property and there are no covenants. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   

The following individuals addressed the Council relative to the request: 
� Anne Osborne, 2101 Hickory Ridge Circle; 
� David Stopack, 2100 Longleaf Trail;
� Bob Norman, 3543 Valley Circle 

Issues raised included predators in the area, concerns of increased predators lured 
by keeping of chickens on premise, the fact that wild animals have been in the wooded 
areas of Altadena forever and that there’s been no increase since Mr. Roth began keeping 
his chickens. 

The Mayor asked if any of these questions were raised at the Commission 
meeting. 

 Mr. Sharp stated that he wasn’t at that particular meeting but concurred that the 
Planning Commission recommended the Conditional Use be approved as presented. 

Mr. Pierce stated that he shares the concerns of neighbors of an increase in 
predators lured by someone keeping chickens. 

 There being no one to address the Council concerning this request, the Mayor 
closed the floor and asked for the question. 

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – no  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 9

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2505 

Ordinance Number 2505 – Rezoning – 3790 Poe Drive; Lots 5 And A Portion Of Lot 
4, Block 3, Glass 3rd Addition To New Merkle; Rezone From Vestavia 
Hills R-4 To Vestavia Hills R-9; Overton Investments, LLC  (public 
hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2505 was by Mr. Pierce and second 
was by Mr. Henley. 

 Mr. Downes stated that this request is to rezone property to allow the construction 
of two new homes on 45’ wide lots.  

 Charles Kessler, Overton Investments LLC, described the request in more detail. 

 Mr. Garrison stated that the Planning Commission had only six members attend 
the evening this was presented and one member voted negative to the request.  This 
comes to the Council with a 5-1 vote to recommend which was a failed recommendation. 

 Discussion ensued as to why the one member voted no.  Mr. Garrison explained 
that the member did not cite any reasons for his vote. 

 Mr. Sharp concurred that the Planning Commission has recommended that the 
Conditional Use be approved as presented to bring the property into compliance. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   

 John Hinds, 3794 Poe Drive, commended Mr. Kessler on the homes that he has 
built in this area and feels these two homes will be a big improvement to the development 
of the area and asked that the Council support the request. 

 There being no one to address the Council concerning this request, the Mayor 
closed the floor and asked for the question. 

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBERS 2506 - 2521 

 The Mayor asked for consideration and discussion of the remaining Old Business, 
Ordinance Numbers 2506 through 2521 be considered together with one public hearing.  
He recognized the property owners in the audience present in regard to the requests. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 10

 Mr. Pierce indicated that the properties were annexed three months ago and this is 
the 90-day final annexation and compatible rezoning of all of the properties. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing for all of the ordinances listed in 
Old Business.  There being no one to address the Council concerning these requests, the 
Mayor closed the floor and asked for the question on each Ordinance. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2506 

Ordinance Number 2506 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 4668 Caldwell Mill Road; 
Layne And Amy Savoie, Owners  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2506 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2507 

Ordinance Number 2507 – Rezoning – 4668 Caldwell Mill Road; Rezoning From 
Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; Compatible Zoning For 
Annexation; Layne And Amy Savoie, Owners  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2507 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Henley.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2508 

Ordinance Number 2508 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2640 Dolly Ridge Road; 
Willard And Ruth Bowers, Owners  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2508 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 11

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2509 

Ordinance Number 2509 – Rezoning – 2640 Dolly Ridge Road; Rezone From 
Jefferson County E-1 To Vestavia Hills E-2; Compatible Zoning For 
Annexation; Willard And Ruth Bowers, Owners  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2509 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Henley.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2510 

Ordinance Number 2510 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2760 Altadena Lake Drive; 
Lot 3, Block 5, First Addition, Altadena Valley Fifth Sector; Lynn R. 
Smitherman, Trustee, Owner  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2510 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2511 

Ordinance Number 2511 – Rezoning – 2760 Altadena Lake Drive; Lot 3, Block 5, 
First Addition, Altadena Valley Fifth Sector; Rezone From Jefferson 
County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2; Compatible Zoning For 
Annexation; Lynn Smitherman, Trustee, Owner  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2511 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Sharp.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2512 

Ordinance Number 2512 – 90-Day Final – 3700 Altadena Circle; Lot 8, Ridge 
Forest; Ralph And Alison McCall, Owners  (public hearing)



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 12

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2512 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Henley.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2513 

Ordinance Number 2513 – Rezoning – 3700 Altadena Circle; Lot 8 Ridge Forest; 
Rezone From Jefferson County A-1 To Vestavia Hills A; Compatible 
Zoning For Annexation; Ralph And Alison McCall, Owners  (public 
hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2513 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2514 

Ordinance Number 2514 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3548 Valley Circle; Lot 12, 
Block 3, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Benjamin And Carol Byrket, 
Owners  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2514 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2515 

Ordinance Number 2515 – Rezoning – 3548 Valley Circle; Lot 12, Block 3, Dolly 
Ridge Estates 2nd Add; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 To 
Vestavia Hills R-2; Benjamin And Carol Byrket, Owners  (public 
hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2515 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 13

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2516 

Ordinance Number 2516 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2400 Rocky Ridge Road; 
Lot 105, Buckhead, 4th Sector; Michael And Donya Rumore  (public 
hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2516 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Henley.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2517 

Ordinance Number 2517 – Rezoning – 2400 Rocky Ridge Road; Lot 105, Buckhead, 
4th Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; 
Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Michael And Donya Rumore, 
Owners  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2517 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2518 

Ordinance Number 2518 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2835 Acton Road; Lot 1, 
Adams Resurvey; Brantley P. Bowden, Owner  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2518 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2519 

Ordinance Number 2519 – Rezoning – 2835 Acton Road; Lot 1, Adams Resurvey; 
Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2; 
Compatible Zoning For Annexation; Brantley P. Bowden, Owner  
(public hearing)



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 14

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2519 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2520 

Ordinance Number 2520 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2468 Kenvil Circle; Lot 42, 
Buckhead, 2nd Sector; Tara Adams, Owner  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2520 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Henley.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2521 

Ordinance Number 2521 – Rezoning – 2568 Kenvil Circle; Lot 42, Buckhead, 2nd

Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County E-2 To Vestavia Hills R-1; 
Tara Adams, Owner  (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2521 was made by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Henley.  Question called, roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 

MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 
on Resolution Numbers 4609 and 4610 was by Mr. Pierce.  Second was by 
Mr. Ammons.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 15

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4609 

Resolution Number 4609 - A Resolution Accepting Contractor Bids For A Proposed 
City Hall And Municipal Court/Police Facility And Authorizing The 
Construction Of Said Facility Pursuant To Said Bids (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4609 was by Mr. Pierce and 
second was by Mr. Ammons. 

 Mr. Downes gave a brief background of the status of the construction of the City 
Hall.  He indicated that this Resolution accepts the bids and secures the documents 
needed for said construction.  In all, the bids came in lower than projected.  A detail of 
the bids and recommendation of acceptance of the lowest bids are attached to the 
Resolution. 

 Both Construction Manager Stephen Riley, Harbert Construction and Project 
Architect Stephen Allen, Williams Blackstock were in attendance.  Mr. Riley stated that 
the bids were reviewed from prequalified bidders and recommendation was given to 
accept the lowest bidders. 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question.

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4610 

Resolution Number 4610 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Replace 
A HVAC Unit On The Lower Level Of The Vestavia Hills Civic 
Center (public hearing)

MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4610 was by Mr. Ammons and 
second was by Mr. Henley. 

 Mr. Downes gave a brief background of the status of this repair.  He stated that 
the air conditioning in this part of the Civic Center has been out a few weeks and 
recommendation was made to get the unit replaced rather than repaired because the costs 
were close and the unit is quite old. 

 Mr. Davis stated that he doesn’t know how old the unit is but has been there since 
he’s been employed with the City. 



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 16

 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, the Mayor closed the floor and asked for the 
question.

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 

FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)

 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on 
August 11, 2014 at 5 PM. 

� Resolution Number 4613 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Purchase Radio Equipment From E-911 Special Funds And To Reimburse The 
General Fund For A Prior Purchase Of Radio Equipment  (public hearing)

� Resolution Number 4614 – Annexation – 90-Day – 4624 Old Looney Mill Road; 
Eric And Meredith Mann, Owners (public hearing)

� Ordinance Number 2522 – Annexation – Overnight – 4624 Old Looney Mill 
Road; Eric and Meredith Mann, Owners (public hearing)

� Resolution Number 4615 – Annexation – 90-Day – 1512 Oak Leaf Trail; Lot 12, 
Gresham Woods; Nicholas Elkhoury, Owner; Paul Norris, Representing   (public
hearing)

� Ordinance Number 2523 – Annexation – Overnight – 1512 Oak Leaf Trail, Lot 
12, Gresham Woods; Nicholas Elkhoury, Owner; Paul Norris, Representing   
(public hearing)

� Resolution Number 4616 – Annexation – 90-Day – 2429 Dolly Ridge Road; Lot 
36, Rocky Ridge Estates; Lila P. Williams, Owner; Earl Gibson, Representing   
(public hearing)

� Ordinance Number 2524 – Annexation – Overnight - 2429 Dolly Ridge Road; 
Lot 36, Rocky Ridge Estates; Lila P. Williams, Owner; Earl Gibson, 
Representing  (public hearing)

� Resolution Number 4617 – Annexation – 90-Day – 3633 Dabney Drive; Lot 37, 
Altadena Forest Estates, 2nd Sector; William Jenkins, Owner; Sarah Macon, 
Representing

� Ordinance Number 2525 – Annexation – Overnight - 3633 Dabney Drive; (public 
hearing) Lot 37, Altadena Forest Estates, 2nd Sector; William Jenkins, Owner; 
Sarah Macon, Representing (public hearing)



City Council Minutes 
July 28, 2014, 

Page 17

CITIZENS COMMENTS 

 None.   

MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Ammons and second was by Mr. SHarp.  
Meeting adjourned at 6:20 PM. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  

Attested by: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4613 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
PURCHASE RADIO EQUIPMENT WITH E-911 SPECIAL FUNDS AND 
TO REIMBURSE THE GENERAL FUND OF THE PREVIOUS 
PURCHASE OF RADIO EQUIPMENT 

WHEREAS, on July 28, 2014, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

acting as the City’s Emergency Communications District Board (“ECD Board”) adopted and 

approved Resolution Number 4608 authorizing the purchase of radio equipment for the purpose 

of transmitting and receiving dispatch calls using E-911 special funds; and 

WHEREAS, the Fire Department has identified a need to purchase radio equipment for 

the purpose of transmitting and receiving dispatch calls in the amount of $17,270 as requested in 

memorandums from the Fire Chief to the City Manager dated July 21 and August 6, 2014, a 

copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A,” attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4613 as though written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Fire Department also identified a purchase made earlier in the fiscal 

year in the amount of $3,989 expensed to the General Fund account; and 

WHEREAS, the Fire Department has requested that the expense be charged to the E-911 

Special Funds account and the General Fund reimbursed in the amount of $3,989; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the request and recommended acceptance 

of said purchase and reimbursement; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept 

the request as presented and recommended by the City Manager. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Finance Director is hereby authorized to transfer the previously purchased radio 

equipment which was purchased within the current fiscal year in the amount of $3,989 to 

the E-911 Special Funds account and reimburse the General Fund; and 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to purchase radios in the amount of $17,270 to be 

expensed to the E-911 Special Funds account; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4613 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval.



ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings  
City Clerk 



VOLENS ET POTENS 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 
513 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 35216 
(205) 978-0225 

(205) 978-0205 (FAX) 
 
 

JAMES R. ST. JOHN 
FIRE CHIEF 
 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  

FROM:  Jim St. John, Fire Chief 

DATE:  July 21, 2014 

RE:  Request to purchase radio equipment from E-911 funds 

We are requesting $19,929.00 of E-911 funds for the purchase and programming of radio 
equipment.  The purchase of two new mobile radios and reprogramming of all existing fire 
department radios has a total of $15,940.00. A prior purchased radio for $3,989.00 would be 
reimbursed to the general fund. 

Resolution No. 4613 - Exhibit A



VOLENS ET POTENS 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 
513 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 35216 
(205) 978-0225 

(205) 978-0205 (FAX) 

JAMES R. ST. JOHN 
FIRE CHIEF 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  

FROM:  Jim St. John, Fire Chief 

DATE:  August 6, 2014 

RE:  Amendment to Resolution 4613 

I recommend an amendment to the original request of $19,929.00 for Resolution 4613 to reflect 
the installation price of $1,330.00 that was not included in the original sales quote. The new total 
for Resolution 4613 is $21,259.00. This increase is an allowable expenditure of special funds. 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4613



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4614 

 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 
OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated May 7, 2014, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of August, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 13th day of August, 2014, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of November, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 

petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4614 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4614 
Page 2 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

4624 Old Looney Mill Road 
Eric and Meredith Mann, Owner(s) 

Being more particularly described as follows: 

A Parcel of Land situated In the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being 
more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the SE corner of said 1/4-1/4 Section; Thence run North 
along the east line of said 1/4-1/4 section for a distance of 737.62 feet to a 
point; thence tum an angle to the left of 72 deg.44 min. 00 sec. and run in 
a Northwesterly direction for a distance of 288.44 feet to the point of 
beginning, said point of beginning being an Iron pin found; thence tum an 
angle to the left of 76 deg. 59 min. 41 sec. and run in a Southwesterly 
direction for a distance of 86.71 feet to an iron pin found; thence turn an 
angle to the right of 17 deg. 23 min. 39 sec. and run In a southwesterly 
direction for a distance of 139.71 feet to an iron pin found; thence turn an 
angle to the left of 116 deg. 44 min. 15 sec. and run in a southeasterly 
direction along the northeast line of Lot 1-B of Martin's Resurvey as 
recorded in Map Book 110, Page 36, in the OffIce of the Judge of Probate, 
Jefferson County, Alabama, for a distance of 218.54 feet to an iron pin set 
on the Northwest right of way of Five Oaks Lane, said right-of-way being 
40 feet wide; thence tum an angle to the left of 78 deg. 30 min. 26 sec. and 
run In a Northeasterly direction along the Northwest right-of-way of said 
Five Oaks Lane for a distance of 223.01 feet to an iron pin set at the 
intersection of Old Looney Mill Road and Five Oaks Lane, said Iron pin 
set being on a curve to the left having a central angle of 2 deg. 35 min. 20 
sec. and a radius of 431.66 feet; thence turn an angle to the left of 94 deg. 
14 min. 36 sec. to the chord of said curve and run in a Northwesterly 
direction along the arc of said curve and also along the Southwest right-of-
way of Old Looney Mill Road for a distance of 19.51 feet to an iron pin 
set; thence tum an angle to the left from the chord of last stated curve of 
10 deg. 54 min. 41 sec. and run In a Northwesterly direction along the 
Southwest line of said Old Looney Mill Road for a distance of 167.03 feet 
to the point of beginning; being situated In Jefferson County, Alabama. 

Less and except the following:

A parcel of land situated in the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama being 
more particularly described as follows: 



Resolution Number 4614 
Page 3 

Commence at the SE comer of said 1/4-1/4 section, thence run north along 
the East line of said 1/4-1/4 section for a distance of 737.62 feet to a point; 
thence turn an angle to the left of 72 deg. 44 min. 00 sec. and run in a 
northwesterly direction for a distance of 288.34 feet to an iron pin found; 
thence tum an angle to the left of 76 deg. 59 min. 41 sec. and run In a 
Southwesterly direction for a distance of 86.71 feet to the point of 
beginning. said point of beginning being an Iron pin found. thence tum an 
angle to the right 17 deg. 23 min. 39 sec. and run In a southwesterly 
direction for a distance of 139.71 feet to an iron pin found, thence tum an 
angle to the left of 115 deg. 44 min. 15 sec. and run In a southeasterly 
direction for a distance of 42.33 feet to an iron pin set; thence tum an 
angle to the left of 80 deg. 39 min. 24 sec. and run In a Northeasterly 
direction for a distance of 126.45 feet to the point of beginning: being 
situated In Jefferson County, Alabama. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4614 
Page 4 



Resolution 4614 - Exhibit A



Resolution 4614 - Exhibit A



Resolution 4614 - Exhibit A



Resolution 4614 - Exhibit A



Resolution 4614 - Exhibit A



Resolution 4614 - Exhibit A



Resolution 4614 - Exhibit A



Resolution 4614 - Exhibit A



Ordinance Number 2522 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2522 

 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Eric and Meredith Mann dated 

May 7, 2014, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

4624 Old Looney Mill Road 
Eric and Meredith Mann 

Being more particularly described as follows: 

A Parcel of Land situated In the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, being 
more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the SE corner of said 1/4-1/4 Section; Thence run North 
along the east line of said 1/4-1/4 section for a distance of 737.62 feet to a 
point; thence tum an angle to the left of 72 deg.44 min. 00 sec. and run in 



Ordinance Number 2522 
Page 2 

a Northwesterly direction for a distance of 288.44 feet to the point of 
beginning, said point of beginning being an Iron pin found; thence tum an 
angle to the left of 76 deg. 59 min. 41 sec. and run in a Southwesterly 
direction for a distance of 86.71 feet to an iron pin found; thence turn an 
angle to the right of 17 deg. 23 min. 39 sec. and run In a southwesterly 
direction for a distance of 139.71 feet to an iron pin found; thence turn an 
angle to the left of 116 deg. 44 min. 15 sec. and run in a southeasterly 
direction along the northeast line of Lot 1-B of Martin's Resurvey as 
recorded in Map Book 110, Page 36, in the OffIce of the Judge of Probate, 
Jefferson County, Alabama, for a distance of 218.54 feet to an iron pin set 
on the Northwest right of way of Five Oaks Lane, said right-of-way being 
40 feet wide; thence tum an angle to the left of 78 deg. 30 min. 26 sec. and 
run In a Northeasterly direction along the Northwest right-of-way of said 
Five Oaks Lane for a distance of 223.01 feet to an iron pin set at the 
intersection of Old Looney Mill Road and Five Oaks Lane, said Iron pin 
set being on a curve to the left having a central angle of 2 deg. 35 min. 20 
sec. and a radius of 431.66 feet; thence turn an angle to the left of 94 deg. 
14 min. 36 sec. to the chord of said curve and run in a Northwesterly 
direction along the arc of said curve and also along the Southwest right-of-
way of Old Looney Mill Road for a distance of 19.51 feet to an iron pin 
set; thence tum an angle to the left from the chord of last stated curve of 
10 deg. 54 min. 41 sec. and run In a Northwesterly direction along the 
Southwest line of said Old Looney Mill Road for a distance of 167.03 feet 
to the point of beginning; being situated In Jefferson County, Alabama. 

Less and except the following:

A parcel of land situated in the SW 1/4 of the NE 1/4 of Section 34, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama being 
more particularly described as follows: 

Commence at the SE comer of said 1/4-1/4 section, thence run north along 
the East line of said 1/4-1/4 section for a distance of 737.62 feet to a point; 
thence turn an angle to the left of 72 deg. 44 min. 00 sec. and run in a 
northwesterly direction for a distance of 288.34 feet to an iron pin found; 
thence tum an angle to the left of 76 deg. 59 min. 41 sec. and run In a 
Southwesterly direction for a distance of 86.71 feet to the point of 
beginning. said point of beginning being an Iron pin found. thence tum an 
angle to the right 17 deg. 23 min. 39 sec. and run In a southwesterly 
direction for a distance of 139.71 feet to an iron pin found, thence tum an 
angle to the left of 115 deg. 44 min. 15 sec. and run In a southeasterly 
direction for a distance of 42.33 feet to an iron pin set; thence tum an 
angle to the left of 80 deg. 39 min. 24 sec. and run In a Northeasterly 
direction for a distance of 126.45 feet to the point of beginning: being 
situated In Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2522 
Page 3 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION:

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2522 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 11th day of August, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 

      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2522 
Page 4 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4615 

 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 
OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated April 27, 2014, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be 

annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of August, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 13th day of August, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of November, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 

petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4615 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4615 
Page 2 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

1512 Oak Leaf Trail 
Lot 12, Gresham Woods 

Nicholas Elkhoury, Owner(s) 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4615 
Page 3 



Resolution No. 4615 - Exhbit A



Resolution No. 4615 - Exhbit A



Resolution No. 4615 - Exhbit A



Resolution No. 4615 - Exhbit A



Resolution No. 4615 - Exhbit A



Resolution No. 4615 - Exhbit A



Resolution No. 4615 - Exhbit A



Ordinance Number 2523 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2523 

 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Nicholas Elkhoury dated April 

27, 2014, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

1512 Oak Leaf Trail 
Lot 12, Gresham Woods 

Nicholas Elkhoury 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 



Ordinance Number 2523 
Page 2 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION:

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2523 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 11th day of August, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 

      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2523 
Page 3 



Resolution Number 4616 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4616 

 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 
OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated June 2, 2014, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of August, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 13th day of August, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of November, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 

petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4616 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4616 
Page 2 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2429 Dolly Ridge Road 
Lot 36, Rocky Ridge Estates 
Lila P. Williams, Owner(s) 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4616 
Page 3 



Resolution No. 4616 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4616 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4616 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4616 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4616 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4616 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4616 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4616 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4616 - Exhibit A



Ordinance Number 2524 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2524 

 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Lila P. Williams dated June 2, 

2014, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

2429 Dolly Ridge Road 
Lot 36, Rocky Ridge Estates 

Lila P. Williams 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 



Ordinance Number 2524 
Page 2 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION:

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2524 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 11th day of August, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 

      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2524 
Page 3 



Resolution Number 4617 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4617 

 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION 
OF CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE 
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated February 27, 2014, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of August, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing 

it within the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham 

News, a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, 

on the 13th day of August, 2014. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of November, 2014, in the Vestavia Hills Municipal 

Center, a public hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said 

petition and to consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk 

prior to such hearing, to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said 

property be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of 

an Ordinance annexing the territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution 

Number 4617 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as 



Resolution Number 4617 
Page 2 

annexation of the following described property by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3633 Dabney Drive 
Lot 37, Altadena Forest Estates, 2nd Sector 

William Jenkins, Owner(s) 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4617 
Page 3 



Resolution No. 4617 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4617 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4617 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4617 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4617 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4617 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4617 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4617 - Exhibit A



Ordinance Number 2525 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2525 

 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by William Jenkins dated February 

27, 2014, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest 

that said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, 

Code of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to 

embrace and include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present 

corporate limits.  The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the 

distance between the old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other 

municipality.  Said territory is described as follows: 

3633 Dabney Drive 
Lot 37, Altadena Forest Estates, 2nd Sector 

William Jenkins 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this 

Ordinance containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be 

published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 



Ordinance Number 2525 
Page 2 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION:

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2525 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 11th day of August, 2014, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the 
______ day of ______________, 2014. 

      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2525 
Page 3 



Resolution Number 4620 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4620 

 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 
PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal 

property detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell said property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS:

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell and/or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property in order to obtain the best resale value of 

said vehicles; and 

2. This Resolution Number 4620 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 11th day of 

August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



VOLENS ET POTENS 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 
513 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 35216 
(205) 978-0225 

(205) 978-0205 (FAX) 

JAMES R. ST. JOHN 
FIRE CHIEF 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Jeff Downes, City Manager    

FROM:  Jim St. John, Fire Chief 

DATE:  August 6, 2014 

RE:  Surplus vehicles 

The Fire Department has placed into service a new pumper and a new ladder truck.  I recommend 
that the 1995 Pierce Dash Pumper, VIN 4PICT02DXSA000452 with City of Vestavia Hills 
property tag # 16021, and the 1990 Pierce Aerial Ladder Truck, VIN 4P1CA02H5LA000353 
with City of Vestavia Hills property tag # 16010 be sold as surplus.  I also recommend that the 
City Council authorize you to sell and/or dispose of the above-referenced property in order to 
obtain the best resale value of said vehicles. 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4620



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4621 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR LANDSCAPE PERMIT (MB-
05) AND PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT A TURNOUT (BM-111-B) WITH 
ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (ALDOT) FOR 
RIGHT-OF-WAY IMPROVEMENTS ON HIGHWAY 31 ADJACENT TO 
THE PROPOSED CITY HALL SITE 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute the following agreements 

(MB-05 and BM-111-B) with the Alabama Department of Transportation (“ALDOT”) 

for right-of-way improvements adjacent to the proposed new City Hall site on Highway 

31; and 

2. A copy of said agreement MB-05 is marked as “Exhibit A” and is attached and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4621 as though written fully therein; and 

3. A copy of said agreement BM-111-B is marked as “Exhibit B” and is attached and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 4621 as though written fully therein; and 

4. This Resolution Number 4621 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4621



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4621



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4621



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4621



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4621



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4621



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4621



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4621



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4621



Resolution Number 4623 
Page 1

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4623 

A RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL OF THE FINAL 10% 
OF THE BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, at its 

regular meeting of September 9, 2014, adopted and approved Resolution Number 4623 to 

adopt 90% of a General Fund budget, 90% of a Special Revenue Fund budget and 90% of 

a Capital Project Fund budget for the fiscal year 2013-2014; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, wishes to 

adopt the final portion (10%) of aforesaid budgets for the fiscal year 2013-2014. 

Total Budget Recap 

 General Funds Special Funds Capital Projects 
Funds 

Total Budget Approved  
$  33,046,147.00 $  2,434,495.00 $       933,417 

Less 90% approved in Res. 
4308 & 4233 $  29,741,532.00 $  2,191,046.00 $       840,075 

Final 10% to be approved $    3,304,615.00 $     243,449.00 $        93,342 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

that the final portion of the annual budget amounting to $3,304,615.00 (general funds), 

$243,449 (special funds) and $93,342 (capital projects funds) for the fiscal year 2013-

2014 is hereby adopted. 



Resolution Number 4623 
Page 2

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings  
City Clerk 



Resolution No. 4623 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4623 - Exhibit



Resolution No. 4623 - Exhibit



R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

N
o.

 4
62

3 
- E

xh
ib

it



R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

N
o.

 4
62

3 
- E

xh
ib

it



Resolution No. 4623 - Exhibit



R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

N
o.

 4
62

3 
- E

xh
ib

it



R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

N
o.

 4
62

3 
- E

xh
ib

it



R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

N
o.

 4
62

3 
- E

xh
ib

it



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4622 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AGREEMENTS TO EXPEDITE AND FACILITATE THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF PATCHWORK FARMS 

WHEREAS, on April 28, 2014, the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4580 to enter into a Master Development Agreement with Daniel Corporation for the 

development of the remainder of Patchwork Farms; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and the Master Developer have determined certain 

surveys, services and documentations that need to be accomplished in order to facilitate the 

planned development including, but not limited to, geotechnical and environmental assessment, 

survey and storm water permitting, future site inspection and monitoring for stormwater 

permitting, master planning and rendering services and a title policy; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has presented a proposal from Goodwyn Mills and 

Cawood dated July 31, 2014 which is a proposal for master planning and existing PUD revisions 

required for the overall Patchwork Farm property in an amount not to exceed $24,000 (with 

funding approved in Resolution Number 4580 as $15,000 to be paid by the City and $9,000 to be 

paid by the City and reimbursed by the Master Developer).  A copy of said proposal is marked as 

Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4622 as though written fully 

therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has presented a proposal from Goodwyn Mills and 

Cawood dated July 31, 2014 which is a proposal to perform boundary and topographic surveys 

and future site inspection and monitoring for storm water at a cost estimated at $28,300.  A copy 

of said proposal is marked as Exhibit B, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4622 as though written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has presented a proposal from Terracon for Phase I 

Environmental Site Assessment in an amount estimated at $20,610.  A copy of said proposal is 

marked as Exhibit C, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4622 as though 

written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has identified certain incidental permits, documents, etc., 

required in order to proceed with the development including, but not limited to an ADEM permit 

fee estimated at $1,155 and a land title policy estimated at $8,500; and 



WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to expedite 

and facilitate the development of Patchwork Farms as recommended by the City Manager. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement detailed in Exhibit A 

with Goodwyn Mills and Cawood in an amount not to exceed $24,000 (funding approved 

in Resolution Number 4580); and 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement detailed in Exhibit B 

with Goodwyn Mills and Cawood in an amount not to exceed $28,300 (funding approved 

by this Resolution Number 4622); and 

3. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the agreement detailed in 

Exhibit C with Terracon (funding approved by this Resolution Number 4622); and 

4. The City Manager is hereby authorized to secure said ADEM permit at an estimated cost 

of $1,155 and a land title policy at an estimated cost of $8,500; and 

5. This Resolution Number 4622 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Mayor 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Jeff Downes
Sent: Wednesday, August 06, 2014 11:16 AM
To: Butch Zaragoza; gpierce@abc-alabama.org; Jim Sharp; 'John Henley'; Steve Ammons
Cc: Rebecca Leavings; Patrick Boone; 'Neil, Doug'
Subject: Patchwork Farms Infrastructure and Due Diligence Work
Attachments: PWF Due Diligence Summary.pdf; GMC Proposal PWF.pdf; GMC Proposal PWF_Survey 

and Stormwater.pdf; Terracon PhI Proposal 22 acre PWF.pdf

Good�morning.��
�
Attached�you�will�find�documents�relative�to�work�that�the�City�must�fund�and�expedite�to�facilitate�the�movement�of�
Northport�Holdings,�the�sale�of�property�to�Cameron�General�Contractors/Resort�Lifestyle�Communities�and�accomplish�
the�necessary�entitlement�work�to�ensure�the�overall�development�of�the�Patchwork�Farms�area.�While�most,�if�not�all,�
of�the�expenses�associated�with�the�infrastructure�work�are�anticipated�as�a�part�of�our�projected�$1.5mm�work�to�mass�
grade�and�provide�utilities�and�road�access�to�the�newly�planned�parcels�on�the�school�board�site,�we�must�act�now�to�
meet�our�deadlines�and�construction�schedule.���
�
I�am�placing�an�item�on�Monday’s�Council�agenda�to�approve�and�authorize�funding�for�the�following�work:�
�
Terracon�(Geo�Technical�and�Environmental�Assessment):�$�20,610.00*�
GMC�(Survey�and�Storm�Water�Permitting):�$�13,900.00*�
GMC�(Future�Site�Inspection�and�Monitoring�for�Storm�water�Permit):�$14,400.00**�
GMC�(Master�Planning�and�Rendering�Services):�$24,000.00***�
Title�Policy�:�$8,500*�
�
*�Immediate�Cash�Required�(Total�=$�43,010.00)�
**Future�Expense�(Authorization�Requested�at�this�time�Total�=�$14,400.00)�
***Anticipated�Expense�included�in�previously�approved�Master�Development�Agreement�with�Daniel�Corp(�Total�=�
$24,000.00)�
�
Future�Work�is�anticipated�and�quantified�on�the�attached�due�diligence�summary;�however,�approval�and�authorization�
is�not�sought�at�this�time.�Furthermore,�draft�agreements�are�being�reviewed�by�Northport�for�the�exchange�of�property�
and�by�Cameron�GC�for�the�sale�of�property.�Both�might�be�ready�for�your�vote�on�Monday�as�well.�
�
By�copy�of�this�email,�I�am�asking�that�Mr.�Boone�review�the�applicable�agreements�prior�to�the�Council�meeting�on�
Monday,�and�Becky�to�place�the�matters�as�unanimous�consent�items�to�allow�our�timely�action.�
�
Thanks�for�your�attention�to�this�matter.�Please�let�me�know�if�you�have�any�questions.�I�know�this�is�a�lot�to�absorb.�I�
am�ready�to�explain�the�details�as�you�require.�
�
Jeff�Downes�
City�Manager�
City�of�Vestavia�Hills,�AL�
513�Montgomery�Highway�
Vestavia�Hills,�AL�35216�
205�978�0195�
jdownes@vhal.org�
�













Exhibit A - Resolution 4622



Exhibit A - Resolution 4622



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Exhibit C- Resolution No. 4622



Ordinance Number 2527 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2527 

AN ORDINANCE FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT REAL 
PROPERTY (“THE PROPERTY”) BEING VACANT PROPERTY 
SITUATED AT 4325 DOLLY RIDGE ROAD, VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA OWNED BY THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
IS NOT NEEDED FOR PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES; TO 
DECIDE WHETHER OR NOT TO SELL THE PROPERTY TO 
HYDINGER, STEWART & CHEW COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES FOR 
A TOTAL CONSIDERATION OF $175,000; A FINDING AND 
DETERMINATION BY THE CITY COUNCIL THAT THE CLOSING OF 
THE SALE OF THE PROPERTY PURSUANT TO THE TERMS, 
PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS OF A WRITTEN REAL ESTATE 
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (“CONTRACT”), WILL 
PROMOTE THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OF THE CITY; WILL 
SERVE AS A VALID AND SUFFICIENT PUBLIC PURPOSE 
NOTWITHSTANDING ANY INCIDENTAL BENEFIT ACCRUING TO 
ANY PRIVATE ENTITY OR ENTITIES; AND WILL BENEFIT THE 
PUBLIC AND PROMOTE THE PUBLIC WELFARE OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS; AND TO AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER THE CONTRACT. 

THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 2527 is approved and adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 11th day of January, 2014. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama is the owner of a parcel of land situated 

at 4325 Dolly Ridge Road in the City of Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama constituting 

of approximately 0.87± acres, which said property is more particularly described in Exhibit A 

and shall hereinafter be referred to as “the Property;” and 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby acknowledges receipt of an offer of Hydinger, 

Stewart & Chew Commercial Properties to purchase the Property represented by a written 

General Sales Contract thereto for a total sales price in the amount of $175,000.00; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of the General Sales Contract (hereinafter referred to collectively as 

the “Contract”) is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit B and is incorporated into this Ordinance 

by reference as though set out fully herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds 

and determines that the Property described in Exhibit A is not needed for municipal or public 

purposes; and 



Ordinance Number 2527 
Page 2 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of the Contract was considered at a public 

hearing held on Monday, August 11, 2014, at the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center located at 513 

Montgomery Highway in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama beginning at 5:00 p.m.; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds and determines that 

the Property more particularly described in Exhibit A is not needed for municipal or public 

purposes.

 2. A public hearing was held by the Vestavia Hills City Council on Monday, January 

23, 2012, at the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center located at 513 Montgomery Highway in the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama beginning at 5:00 p.m to consider the enactment of this 

Ordinance, the execution and delivery of the Contract and the matters required to be considered. 

 3. The City finds and determines that the sale of the Property (provided all Closing 

Conditions are satisfied and completed) to Hydinger, Stewart & Chew Commercial Partners for a 

total consideration of $175,000, will: 

   (a) Promote the economic development of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama; and 

   (b) Serve as a valid and sufficient public purpose; and 

   (c) Benefit the public and promote the public welfare of the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

   (d) Promote commercial development and the stimulation of the local 
economy; and 

   (e) Increase employment opportunities and create jobs in the City; and 

   (f) Increase the City’s tax base, which will result in additional tax 
revenues for the City; and 

   (g) Promote the location, relocation, expansion and retention of 
commercial enterprises in the City. 

 4. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 

written General Sales Contract marked as Exhibit B and attached hereto. 

 5. If any part, section or subdivision of this Ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 



Ordinance Number 2527 
Page 3 

remainder of this ordinance which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such 

holding.

 6. The provision of the Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon the 

passage and approval thereof by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and the 

publication and/or posting thereof as required by Alabama law. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED, on this the 11th day of August, 

2014.

       ____________________________________ 
       Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

_________________________________________
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION:

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2527 is a true and correct copy 
of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 
11th day of August, 2014 as same appears in the official records of said City. 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2014.

      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2527 
Legal Description



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2527 
Legal Description



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 2527 
General Sales Contract



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 2527 
General Sales Contract



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 2527 
General Sales Contract



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 2527 
General Sales Contract



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 2527 
General Sales Contract



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 2527 
General Sales Contract



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4624 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH SAIN ASSOCIATES FOR 
DESIGN OF A ROADWAY ADJACENT TO VESTAVIA HILLS CAHABA 
HEIGHTS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement with Sain 

Associates entitled “Proposal for Engineering and Surveying Services, Cahaba Heights 

Elementary Roadway Project, SA#14-0127” (“the Project”) in an amount not to exceed 

$33,085; and 

2. A copy of said agreement marked Exhibit A is attached to and incorporated into this 

Resolution Number 4624; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4624 is effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution No. 4624 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4624 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4624 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4624 - Exhibit A



Resolution No. 4624 - Exhibit A



Ordinance Number 2526 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2526 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE 
APPROVAL FOR AN EXTENSTION OF A 120’ STEALTH 
MONOPOLE (FLAG POLE) TO A MAXIMUM HEIGHT OF 140’ 

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2010 the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama approved and adopted Ordinance Number 2331 entitled the Vestavia Hills 

Zoning Code and establishing a conditional use approval for certain uses not permissible 

by right in zoning classifications; and 

WHEREAS, on May 28, 2014, New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC d/b/a AT&T 

Mobility (AT&T) submitted an application for extension of a 120’ stealth flagpole 

(flagpole) on the property located at 4871 Sicard Hollow Road currently zoned Vestavia 

Hills Inst-1; and 

WHEREAS, Section 7.9 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Code sets forth 

development criteria for new telecommunications facilities; and 

WHEREAS, AT&T has shown a need for added coverage in the general area of 

subject property in and along area rights-of-way; and 

WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission at its regular 

meeting of July 10, 2014 voted unanimously to recommend approval of the request for an 

extension of a 120’ stealth flagpole (flagpole) to a maximum height of 140’ be approved 

as requested, with the stipulation that the flag and flagpole meet the requirements of the 

United States Flag Code; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of said application dated May 28, 2014 is attached and 

hereby incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2526. 



Ordinance Number 2526 
Page 2 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Conditional Use Approval is hereby approved for AT&T, for extension of a 

120’ stealth monopole (flagpole) for the property located at 4871 Sicard 

Hollow Road to a maximum height of 140’ with the following conditions: 

(1) “Said flag and flagpole to be kept perpetually in good condition by owner 

and meet the requirements of the United States Flag Code; and 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION:

 I, Rebecca Leavings, as Acting City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2526 is a true 
and correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City 
of Vestavia Hills on the 25th day of August, 2014 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 

 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2014. 

      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinancce Number 252
Page

26
e 3 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2526



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2526



E
xh

ib
it 

A
 - 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 N

o.
 2

52
6



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2526



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2526



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2526







02982598.1 

RESOLUTION NO. 4625 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SPECIAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
BY THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA AND NORTHPORT HOLDING, LLC 

              
 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA (THE "COUNCIL"), AS GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA (the "Municipality"), as follows: 

Section 1. The Council, upon evidence duly presented to and considered by it, has found 
and determined, and does hereby find, determine and declare as follows: 

(a) Pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Alabama, the Municipality and 
Northport Holding, LLC (the "Owner") have prepared that certain Special Economic Development 
Agreement to be dated the date of delivery (the "Special Economic Development Agreement"), as set 
forth hereinafter, for the purposes referenced therein. 

(b) The Municipality is without absolute authority or power under any local 
constitutional amendment to do any of the actions or undertakings referenced in Amendment No. 
772 of the Constitution of Alabama of 1901, as amended ("Amendment No. 772"). 

(c)  The Municipality is authorized under Amendment No. 772 to become indebted, and 
to issue obligations as referenced therein, upon the full faith and credit of the Municipality, to a 
principal amount not exceeding 50% of the assessed value of taxable property therein, as determined 
for state taxation, in furtherance of the powers and authorities granted in Amendment No. 772.  

(d) Pursuant to, and for the purposes of, Amendment No. 772, it is necessary, desirable 
and in the public interest for the Municipality to grant public funds in an amount of approximately 
$3,150,000 for the economic development of the Municipality pursuant to the terms of the Special 
Economic Development Agreement. 

(e) The expenditure of public funds for the purposes specified in the Special Economic 
Development Agreement will serve a valid and sufficient public purpose, notwithstanding any 
incidental benefit accruing to any private entity or entities. 

(f) (1) On August __, 2014, the Municipality caused to be published in The 
Birmingham News, which newspaper has the largest circulation in the Municipality, the notice 
required by Amendment No. 772(c)(2), a true and correct copy of which notice is set forth as follows: 



02982598.1 

LEGAL NOTICE  
OF  

PUBLIC MEETING AND PUBLIC HEARING  
ON MONDAY,  AUGUST 25, 2014  

OF 
CITY COUNCIL OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council (the "Council") of the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama (the "City") will meet in public session at 5:00 p.m. on 
Monday, August 25, 2014 at the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center in the City of 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama for the purpose of considering the transaction of business 
that may properly come before the Council, such business to include, but not be 
limited to, the authorization by the Council, pursuant to Amendment No. 772 of the 
Constitution of Alabama of 1901, as amended, of a resolution (the "Resolution") 
approving the execution and delivery of a Special Economic Development Agreement 
(the “City Agreement”) by the City and Northport Holding, LLC, a Delaware limited 
liability company (the “Owner”), to be dated the date of delivery, pursuant to which 
City Agreement the City shall make available to the Owner financial economic 
incentives for purposes referenced in the City Agreement. 

The City Agreement shall evidence the agreement of the City to make the 
following economic development grants to the Owner for the purpose of promoting 
the economic development of the City and in consideration of the acquisition, 
construction, installation and operation by the Owner of commercial and related 
facilities in the City (the “Project”): (1) the City shall make an economic development 
grant to the Owner, with respect to the acquisition, construction and installation of 
the Project, in an amount equal to approximately $1,550,000; and (2) the City shall 
make economic development grants to the Owner, in each year for a period of 
approximately 20 years after the Project shall have been opened for business to the 
public, in an amount equal to the amount of ad valorem taxes paid by the Owner in 
each such year with respect to the Project, which annual amounts, over the entire 20-
year term, are estimated by the City, and are limited to, an aggregate amount of 
approximately $1,600,000; and (3) the City shall perform site preparation work, 
consisting of grading, acquisition and installation of utilities, and construction of 
roads, for the benefit of the Project. 

The City seeks to achieve, by undertaking its obligations pursuant to the City 
Agreement and the Resolution, to promote the local economic and commercial 
development of the City, to increase employment in the City, and to increase the tax 
and revenue base of the City. 

The business entities to whom or for whose benefit the City propose to lend 
its credit or grant public funds or thing of value are the Owner and the entities that 
locate in the facilities established by the Owner. 



02982598.1 

All interested persons may examine and review the City Agreement, the 
Resolution, and all relevant documents pursuant to which the City Agreement is to 
be issued and secured, and make copies thereof at personal expense, at the offices of 
the City Manager during normal business hours, before and after the meeting 
referenced herein. 

Further information concerning the information in this notice can be 
obtained from the City Manager at the offices thereof during normal business hours.  



02982598.1 

(2) The information set forth in said notice is true and correct. 

(3) Publication of said notice is hereby ratified and confirmed. 

(h) (1) The assessed valuation of the taxable property in the Municipality for the 
preceding fiscal year (ending September 30, 2013 and on the basis of which taxes became due and 
payable on October 1, 2013) was not less than $630,314,820. 

 
(2) The total indebtedness of the Municipality chargeable against the debt 

limitation for the Municipality prescribed by Section 225 of the Constitution of Alabama of 1901, as 
amended, (which indebtedness does not include the Warrant issued under Amendment No. 772), is 
not more than twenty percent of said assessed valuation. 

 
(3) The total indebtedness of the Municipality chargeable against the debt 

limitation for the Municipality prescribed by Amendment No. 772(a)(4) (which indebtedness does 
include the economic incentives referenced under Section 1(d)), is not more than fifty percent of said 
assessed valuation. 

 
Section 2. The Council does hereby approve, adopt, authorize, direct, ratify and confirm: 

(a) the agreements, covenants, and undertakings of the Municipality set forth in the 
Special Economic Development Agreement, and 

(b) the terms and provisions of the Special Economic Development Agreement, in 
substantially the form and of substantially the content as set forth as follows, with such changes 
thereto (by addition or deletion) as the Mayor shall approve, which approval shall be conclusively 
evidenced by execution and delivery of the Special Economic Development Agreement as hereinafter 
provided: 

 



02982598.1 

Section 3. 
 
(a) The Mayor and the City Manager are each hereby authorized and directed to execute 

and deliver the Special Economic Development Agreement for and on behalf of and in the name of 
the Municipality.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to affix the official seal of the 
Municipality to the Special Economic Development Agreement and to attest the same. 

(b) The Mayor, the City Manager, and the officers of the Municipality are each hereby 
authorized and directed to take all such actions, and execute, deliver and perform all such 
agreements, documents, instruments, notices, and petitions and proceedings, with respect to the 
Special Economic Development Agreement, as the Mayor and such officers shall determine to be 
necessary or desirable to carry out the provisions of this resolution or the Special Economic 
Development Agreement or duly and punctually observe and perform all agreements and obligations 
of the Municipality under the Special Economic Development Agreement. 

Section 4. The Municipality desires, before the delivery of the Special Economic 
Development Agreement, to validate the legality of all proceedings had or taken in connection 
therewith, the validity of the means provided for the payment of the economic incentives set forth in 
the Special Economic Development Agreement, and the validity of all covenants and provisions 
contained in this resolution and the Special Economic Development Agreement, by filing a petition 
against the taxpayers and citizens of the Municipality in the Circuit Court of Jefferson County, 
Alabama.  A complaint to validate the Special Economic Development Agreement, proceedings, and 
covenants shall be filed and validation proceedings shall be instituted in the name of the 
Municipality and the members of the governing body of the Municipality.  Maynard, Cooper & Gale, 
P.C., Birmingham, Alabama, and Patrick H. Boone, Esq., are hereby designated and appointed as 
the attorneys of the Municipality to file such complaint, institute such proceedings, and to take all 
steps necessary to complete such validation proceedings in accordance with the provisions of Article 
17 of Chapter 6 of Title 6 of the CODE OF ALABAMA 1975.  Any actions heretofore taken by such 
attorneys in connection with the filing of such petition or such validation proceedings are hereby 
ratified and confirmed. 

 
Section 5. All prior actions taken, and agreements, documents or notices executed and 

delivered, by the Mayor or any officer or member of the Council or other representative of the 
Municipality, in connection with the agreements, covenants, and undertakings of the Municipality 
hereby approved, or in connection with the preparation of the Special Economic Development 
Agreement and the terms and provisions thereof, are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed. 

 Section 6. All ordinances, resolutions, orders, or parts of any thereof, of the Council in 
conflict, or inconsistent, with any provision of this resolution hereby are, to the extent of such conflict 
or inconsistency, repealed. 
 
 Section 7. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
 



02982598.1 

After said resolution had been discussed and considered in full by the Council, it was moved 
by Councilmember __________ that said resolution be now placed upon its final passage and adopted.  
The motion was seconded by Councilmember __________.  The question being put as to the adoption 
of said motion and the final passage and adoption of said resolution, the roll was called with the 
following results: 
 

Ayes: Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr., Mayor 
 Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tempore 
 John Henley 
 George Pierce 
 Jim Sharp 

 
 Nays:  None 
 

The Mayor thereupon declared said motion carried and the resolution passed and adopted as 
introduced and read. 

 

 



02982598.1 

*     *     *     * 

There being no further business to come before the meeting, it was moved and seconded that 
the meeting be adjourned.  Motion carried. 

Minutes approved: 

________________________________ 
Mayor  

________________________________ 
Mayor Pro-Tem 

________________________________ 
Member of the City Council 

________________________________ 
Member of the City Council 

________________________________ 
Member of the City Council 

S E A L 

Attest:____________________________ 
 City Clerk

 



02982598.1 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 
 

CERTIFICATE OF CITY CLERK 
 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that (1) I am the duly elected, qualified and acting City 
Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (the "Municipality"); (2) as Clerk of the Municipality I 
have access to all original records of the Municipality and I am duly authorized to make certified 
copies of its records on its behalf; (3) the attached pages constitute a complete, verbatim and 
compared copy of excerpts from the minutes of a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
Municipality duly held on August 25, 2014, the original of which is on file and of record in the 
minute book of the City Council in my custody; (4) the resolution set forth in such excerpts is a 
complete, verbatim and compared copy of such resolution as introduced and adopted by the City 
Council on such date; and (5) said resolution is in full force and effect and has not been repealed, 
amended or changed. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as Clerk of the Municipality and 

have affixed the official seal of the Municipality, this _____ day of __________, 2014. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama 

S E A L 
  



02982598.1 

EXCERPTS FROM THE MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 

Regarding Special Economic Development Agreement by the City  
of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and Northport Holding, LLC 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills met in regular public session at the Vestavia 

Hills Municipal Center in the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, at 5:00 p.m. on August 25, 2014.  The 
meeting was called to order by the Mayor, and the roll was called with the following results: 
 

Present: Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr., Mayor 
 Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tempore 
 John Henley 
 George Pierce 
 Jim Sharp 
 

 Absent:  ____________________________ 
 

*     *     * 
 

The Mayor stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business. 
 

*     *     * 
 

Thereupon, the following resolution was introduced in writing by the Mayor, and considered 
by the City Council: 
 



02981915.1 

              

SPECIAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

              

 
 
 

      
 

Dated Date of Delivery 
      

 

 
by 

 

 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

 

 

and 

 

 

NORTHPORT HOLDING, LLC 
 

 

 

              

This Special Economic Development Agreement was prepared by Heyward C. Hosch of 
Maynard, Cooper & Gale, P.C., 1901 Sixth Avenue North, 2400 Regions/Harbert Plaza, 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203-2618. 
              

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1�

 SPECIAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

     

August __, 2014 
     

 
 This SPECIAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered on the 
above Date of Delivery by the City OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, an Alabama municipal 
corporation (the "City"), and NORTHPORT HOLDING, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(the "Owner"). 
 
 Recitals 
 
 The Owner proposes to develop, on the real property that is located wholly within the corporate 
limits of City and that is described on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof (the "Project 
Site"), a rehabilitation facility (the “Project”), as more particularly described in the within-referenced 
Exchange Agreement. 
 
 The City has determined the development of the Project by the Owner will increase the tax and 
revenue base of the City, and will create further opportunities for increase of the tax and revenue base 
of the City and employment opportunities in the City.  As a result thereof, the City has agreed to 
provide to the Owner the within-referenced Total City Commitment. 
 
 Pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Alabama and for the purposes referenced herein, 
City and Owner have delivered this Agreement. 
 

Agreement 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises, and the mutual covenants and 
agreements herein contained, City and Owner hereby covenant and agree as follows: 
 
 
  

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1� 2�

ARTICLE 1 
 
 DEFINITIONS 
 
 For purposes of this Agreement the following terms shall have the following meanings:   
 

Act of Insolvency shall mean, with respect to Owner, the appointment of a receiver, 
liquidator, or trustee of Owner or any of its properties or assets; or a general assignment by Owner 
for the benefit of the creditors thereof; or the commencement of proceedings by or against Owner 
under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or 
liquidation law or any jurisdiction, now or hereafter in effect. 

Annual Payment Date shall mean that date established by the City for payment of the 
Annual Property Tax Reimbursement Amount in each year, which shall be within 45 days after the 
receipt by City of the Request for Payment of Annual Property Tax Reimbursement Amount from 
Owner pursuant to Section 4.02(2). 

Annual Property Tax Reimbursement Amount shall mean, for any Annual Payment 
Date, an amount equal to the ad valorem taxes actually paid by Owner for the then immediately 
preceding tax year with respect to the Project. 

City Work shall have the meaning assigned in Section 4.03. 

Closing Conditions shall mean and include the following: (a) the Date of Validation shall 
have occurred; (b) Owner shall have performed and observed all agreements of Owner herein 
precedent to the performance to the obligations of City herein; and (c) all representations and 
warranties of the City and the Owner herein shall be true and correct in all material respects as of 
the Date of Closing. 

Date of Closing shall mean the date determined and established as the Date of Closing 
pursuant to Section 3.01. 

Date of Delivery shall mean August __, 2014. 

Date of Termination shall mean the first to occur of: (1) the termination of this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 7.11; or (2) the Annual Payment Date for the tax year in which occurs the 
twentieth (20th) anniversary of the Date of Closing; or (3) the date on which the City Work shall have 
been completed and the City shall have paid as Economic Development Payments hereunder an 
aggregate amount equal to the Total Economic Development Payment Commitment; or (4) the 
termination of this Agreement by City under Section 6.02(2) hereof. 

Date of Validation shall mean that date on which a judgment entered by the Circuit Court 
of Jefferson County, Alabama validating and confirming the Warrant shall have become forever 
conclusive in accordance with, and as provided in, Section 6-6-755 of the Code of Alabama 1975. 

Economic Development Payments shall mean collectively the Project Costs Amount and 
the Annual Property Tax Reimbursement Amount. 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1� 3�

Enabling Law shall mean Amendment No. 772 of the Constitution of Alabama of 1901, as 
amended, as at any time amended or supplemented, or any successor provision of law. 

Exchange Agreement shall mean that certain Exchange Agreement dated _____________, 
2014 by the City and the Owner, as at any time amended, restated or supplemented. 

Force Majeure shall mean and include acts of God or the public enemy, strikes, lockouts, 
work slowdowns or stoppages or other labor disputes, insurrections, adverse weather, riots or other 
civil disturbances, orders of the government of the United States of America or of any state of the 
United States of America or of any of the departments, agencies, political subdivisions or officials of 
the United States of America or of any state thereof, or orders of any civil or military authority, or 
partial or entire failure of public utilities or other condition or event beyond the reasonable control of 
Owner; provided, however, Force Majeure shall not include a failure or inability to pay money. 

Owner shall mean Northport Holding, LLC, and the successors and assigns thereof. 

Project shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals.  

Project Costs Amount shall mean an amount equal to $1,550,000. 

Project Site shall have the meaning set forth in the Recitals. 

Total City Commitment shall mean the sum of the Total Economic Development Payment 
Commitment and the Total City Work Commitment. 

Total City Work Commitment shall mean an amount equal to $_____________________. 

Total Economic Development Payment Commitment shall mean the amount of Three 
Million One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($3,150,000). 

Warrant shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.04. 

 
 ARTICLE 2 
 REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
 
 SECTION 2.01  City.  City hereby represents as follows: 
 

  (1) City has corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement, pursuant to the 
Enabling Law, and to carry out its obligations hereunder, and by proper corporate action City has duly 
authorized the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement. 
 

  (2) The Warrant shall be issued, sold and delivered upon condition, and purchased by 
Owner thereof in the reliance, that this Agreement is enforceable against City in accordance with the 
terms hereof. 
 

  (3) The issuance of the Warrant and the application of the proceeds thereof for the purposes 
set forth in this Agreement (i) will result in direct financial benefits to City and (ii) will serve a valid and 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1� 4�

sufficient public purpose, notwithstanding any incidental benefit accruing to any private entity or 
entities. 

 
  (4) City represents and certifies that the indebtedness of City incurred pursuant to the 

Enabling Law is less than 50 percent of the assessed value of the taxable property in City as determined 
for state taxation for the fiscal year immediately preceding the Date of Delivery. 

 
 SECTION 2.02  Owner.  Owner hereby represents and warrants as follows: 
 

  (1) (a) Owner is duly organized and validly existing as a limited liability company 
under the laws of the State of Delaware. 

 
 (b) Owner is duly registered to do business in the State of Alabama. 

 
  (2) Owner has duly authorized the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement.  

 
(3) The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by Owner does not 

conflict with or result in a violation of any agreement, contract, instrument, order, writ, judgment or 
decree to which Owner is a party or is subject. 

(4) No consent or approval by, or filing with, any governmental authority in the State of 
Alabama is required for the execution or delivery of this Agreement by Owner or for the full 
effectiveness or enforceability thereof under the laws of the State of Alabama. 

(5) There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation pending before any court 
or governmental authority, or threatened in writing against or affecting Owner, which involves the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated by, or the validity of, this Agreement. 

 
 

 ARTICLE 3 
 DETERMINATION OF DATE OF CLOSING; DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
 
 SECTION 3.01  Determination of Date of Closing.  At such time as the City and the Owner 
are satisfied that all Closing Conditions shall have been met to the satisfaction of City and Owner, City 
and Owner shall determine and establish the Date of Closing for purposes of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 3.02  Duration of Agreement.  
 
 (1) The obligations of City and Owner hereunder shall arise on the Date of Delivery and 
shall continue until the Date of Termination, except with respect to any specific agreement or covenant 
which by its terms expressly survives termination of this Agreement. 
 
 (2) From and after the termination of this Agreement, neither party shall have any rights 
against the other under this Agreement save and excepting those that shall have already vested. 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1� 5�

 ARTICLE 4 
 AGREEMENTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF CITY 
 

SECTION 4.01  Nature, Amount and Duration of Obligation of City.  City and Owner 
agree: 

 
 (1) Purpose.  Pursuant to this Agreement, City has agreed to undertake the City Work 
and pay to the Owner the Economic Development Payments determined by City to be due and 
payable in accordance with the terms hereof. 
 
 (2) Nature of Obligation. 

 
The obligation of City for the payment of the costs of the City Work and the payment 

of the Economic Development Payments is a general obligation for which the full faith, credit 
and taxing power of City are hereby pledged. 

 
 (3) Maximum Amount.   
 
 Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the maximum amount City 
shall pay under this Agreement and the Warrant shall be limited to and shall not exceed the Total 
City Commitment. 
 
 (4) Duration and Termination.   
 
 Anything in this Agreement or in the Warrant to the contrary notwithstanding, City shall 
have no obligation to pay any amount of the costs of the City Work or of Economic Development 
Payments under this Agreement or the Warrant: 
 
  (a) prior to the Date of Closing; or  
 

(b) after the Date of Termination. 
 

SECTION 4.02  Determination and Payment of Economic Development Payments. 
 

(1) Project Costs Amount. 
 
 City covenants and agrees: 
 

The City shall deliver the Project Costs Amount to the Owner, in immediately 
available funds, upon receipt of a written request therefor, satisfactory to the City, executed 
by a duly authorized representative of the Owner, as follows: 

 
(a) on the Closing Date under the Exchange Agreement, the amount of 

$500,000; 
 
(b) on April 1, 2015, an amount equal to $500,000; and 
 
(c) on October 1, 2015, an amount equal to $550,000. 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1� 6�

 
(2) Annual Property Tax Reimbursement Amount. 
 
 (a) In order to receive an Annual Property Tax Reimbursement Amount, Owner 
shall execute and deliver to City, on or after January 31 in each year in which this 
Agreement is in effect, a Request for Payment of Annual Property Tax Reimbursement 
Amount in form and of content as attached as Exhibit B hereto. 
 
 (b) City shall, on the Annual Payment Date, determine as provided herein, and 
pay to Owner, the amount, if any, of the Annual Property Tax Reimbursement Amount due 
hereunder for the period referenced in such certificate. 
 
 (c) City will permit any attorneys, accountants or other agents or 
representatives designated by Owner to visit and inspect any of the accounting systems, 
books of account, and financial records and properties of City which pertain to the Net 
Project Sales Tax Proceeds and the determination of Annual Property Tax Reimbursement 
Amount, all at reasonable business times and upon reasonable notice. 

 
SECTION 4.03  Performance of City Work. 

 
 (1) Promptly following the execution of this Agreement, the City shall cause Goodwyn, 
Mills and Cawood, Inc. to prepare preliminary grading and utility plans (collectively, the 
“Preliminary Plans”) for the Project Site and the other real property (collectively, “Lots  B and C”) 
designated as Lots B and C on Exhibit A hereto and shall submit the same to Owner for review and 
approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  Upon approval of such 
Preliminary Plans by Owner (the “Approved Plans”), the City shall undertake the following at the 
City’s sole cost and expense (collectively, the “City Work”) subject to the limitations of Section 
4.03(c): 
 

(a) The rough grading of the Project Site and Lots B and C in substantial 
accordance with the Approved Plans.  In addition, the Project Site shall be graded at +/-0.2 
feet from finished grade and at +/-2% of 95% Standard Proctor soil compaction, as certified 
by Goodwyn, Mills and Cawood, Inc.;  

 
(b) The construction and installation of water, electrical, sanitary sewer and 

storm drainage lines, pipe, conduit and other apparatus to the property line of the Project 
Site and storm water detention facilities in order to serve the Project Site and Lots B and C 
(in which event additional easements shall be established which benefit the Project Site and 
burden Lots B and C and require each such property to pay a prorata share of maintenance 
costs with respect to any such storm water detention facilities) in substantial accordance 
with Approved Plans; and 

 
(c) The construction of (i) a public roadway from Caldwell Mill Road along the 

easternmost boundary of the Property, as shown in Exhibit A hereto and (ii) the extension of 
Healthy Way, a public roadway, from its current point of termination adjacent to the Owner 
Property to Caldwell Mill Road (collectively, the “Roads”). 

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1� 7�

 (2) The City Work shall achieve substantial completion no later than 200 days following 
the Date of Closing (the “Substantial Completion Date”), subject to extensions thereof as a result of 
any matters of Force Majeure; provided, however, that the City may elect to postpone application of 
the final seal coat to the Roads to a date after the Substantial Completion Date.  Substantial 
completion of the City Work shall be conclusively presumed to have occurred upon the issuance of a 
certificate or letter of substantial completion of all of the City Work by Goodwyn, Mills and Cawood, 
Inc. 
 
 (3) Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the maximum amount 
the City shall pay under this Agreement and the Warrant with respect to the City Work shall be 
limited to and shall not exceed the Total City Work Commitment. 
 

SECTION 4.04  The Warrant. 
 
 (1) The obligation of City to pay the Total City Commitment hereunder shall be 
evidenced by a warrant in form and of content as the form of warrant attached to this Agreement as 
Exhibit C (the "Warrant"). 
 

(2) The Warrant shall not bear interest, shall be issued in an aggregate principal 
amount not exceeding the Total City Commitment, shall be dated the date of delivery, shall be 
delivered after the Date of Validation and on the Date of Closing, and shall mature on the Date of 
Termination. 
 
 (3) The Warrant shall be duly executed, sealed, and attested by City, and shall be 
registered by City as a conditional claim against the Total City Commitment. 
 
 (4) The Warrant shall be registered and transferred as provided therein. 
 
 
 ARTICLE 5 
 OBLIGATIONS OF OWNER 
 
 (1) Owner hereby agrees to duly and punctually observe and perform all agreements 
thereof under this Agreement. 
 
 (2) (a) Owner agrees to defend, protect, indemnify, and hold harmless City, its 

agents, employees, and members of its governing body, from and against all claims or 
demands, including actions or proceedings brought thereon, and all costs, expenses, and 
liabilities of any kind relating thereto, including reasonable attorney's fees and cost of suit, 
arising out of or resulting from any of the following, provided, however, that the foregoing 
indemnity will not extend to the negligent misconduct of City, its agents, employees, and 
members of its governing body:  (i) any construction activity performed by Owner, or anyone 
claiming by through, or under Owner; and (ii) any loss of life, personal injury, or damage to 
property arising from or in relation to the entry upon, construction, use, operation or occupancy of 
the Project, including, without limitation, tenants, customers and invitees of the Project and/or 
Owner. 

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1� 8�

  (b) The agreements and covenants in this Article 5 shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement with respect to events or occurrences happening prior to or upon the termination of this 
Agreement and shall remain in full force and effect until commencement of an action with respect to 
any thereof shall be prohibited by law. 

 
 
 ARTICLE 6 
 EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 
 
 SECTION 6.01  Events of Default. 
 
 Any one or more of the following shall constitute an event of default by City or Owner hereunder 
(an "Event of Default") under this Agreement: 
 
 (1)  default in the performance, or breach, of any covenant or warranty of City in this 
Agreement, including without limitation default in the payment of the Project Cost Amount, any 
Annual Property Tax Reimbursement Amount under Section 4.02 hereof, and the continuance of 
such default or breach for a period of 30 days after there has been given, by registered or certified 
mail, to City by Owner a written notice specifying such default or breach and requiring it to be 
remedied and stating that such notice is a "notice of default" hereunder, provided that if such default 
is of a kind which cannot reasonably be cured within such thirty-day period, City shall have a 
reasonable period of time within which to cure such default, provided that it begins to cure the 
default promptly after its receipt of such written notice and proceeds in good faith, and with due 
diligence, to cure such default; or 
 
 (2)  default in the performance, or breach, of any covenant or warranty of Owner in this 
Agreement, and the continuance of such default or breach for a period of thirty (30) days after there 
has been given, by registered or certified mail, to Owner by City a written notice specifying such 
default or breach and requiring it to be remedied and stating that such notice is a "notice of default" 
hereunder, provided that if such default is of a kind which cannot reasonably be cured within such 
thirty-day period, Owner shall have a reasonable period of time within which to cure such default, 
provided that it begins to cure the default promptly after its receipt of such written notice and 
proceeds in good faith, and with due diligence, to cure such default;  
 
 (3) the occurrence of an Act of Insolvency with respect to Owner; or 
 
 (4) any material representation or warranty made by or on behalf of Owner in this 
Agreement, or otherwise made in any manner to City shall be false, misleading or incorrect at the 
time made.  
 
 SECTION 6.02  Remedies. 
 
 (1) Each party hereto may proceed to protect its rights and interests by suit in equity, 
action at law or other appropriate proceedings, whether for the specific performance of any covenant or 
agreement of any other party herein contained or in aid of the exercise of any power or remedy available 
at law or in equity.   
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1� 9�

 (2) Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, City may terminate this 
Agreement upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under Section 6.01(2), Section 6.01(3), or Section 
6.01(4), whereupon City shall have no further obligation hereunder. 
 
 SECTION 6.03  Remedies Subject to Applicable Law.  
 
 All rights, remedies and powers provided by this Agreement may be exercised only to the extent 
the exercise thereof does not violate any applicable provision of law in the premises, and all the 
provisions of this Article are intended to be subject to all applicable mandatory provisions of law which 
may be controlling in the premises and to be limited to the extent necessary so that the same will not 
render this Agreement invalid or unenforceable. 
 
 
 ARTICLE 7 
 PROVISIONS OF GENERAL APPLICATION 
 
 SECTION 7.01  Enforceability.   
 
 The provisions of this Agreement shall be severable.  In the event any provision hereof shall be 
held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or 
render unenforceable any of the remaining provisions hereof. 
 
 SECTION 7.02  Prior Agreements Cancelled.   
 
 This Agreement shall completely and fully supersede all other prior agreements, both written 
and oral, by the parties hereto relating to the matters contained herein.  None of the parties hereto shall 
hereafter have any rights under any of such prior agreements but shall look to this Agreement for 
definition and determination of all of their respective rights, liabilities and responsibilities relating to 
the matters contained herein.   
 
 SECTION 7.03  Counterparts. 
 
 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall constitute but one and the 
same agreement.   
 
 SECTION 7.04  Binding Effect; Governing Law. 
 
 (1) This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, the parties 
hereto and their respective successors and assigns except as otherwise provided herein.   
 
 (2) This Agreement shall be governed exclusively by the laws of the State of Alabama.   
  

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1� 10�

 SECTION 7.05  Notices. 
 
 (1) All notices, demands, consents, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be 
in writing, shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered personally to the party 
or to an officer of the party to whom the same is directed, or mailed by registered or certified mail, 
postage prepaid, or sent by overnight courier, addressed as follows: 
 

if to City: if to Owner: 
  
City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama Northport Holding, LLC 
City Hall 931 Fairfax Park 
513 Montgomery Highway Tuscaloosa, Alabama 35406 
Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216  
  

 
 (2) Any such notice or other document shall be deemed to be received as of the date 
delivered, if delivered personally, or as of three (3) days after the date deposited in the mail, if mailed, or 
the next business day, if sent by overnight courier.   
 
 SECTION 7.06  Delegation and Assignment of this Agreement by Owner. 
 
 (1) During the period beginning on the Date of Delivery and ending on the Completion 
Date, Owner shall have no authority or power to, and shall not, without the prior written consent of the 
City (which shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), delegate to any Person the 
duty or obligation to observe or perform any agreement or obligation of Owner hereunder. 
 
 (2) During the period beginning on the Date of Delivery and ending on the Completion 
Date, Owner shall not have any authority or power to, and shall not, without the prior written consent 
of City (which shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned), assign or pledge to any 
Person any right of Owner hereunder or any interest of Owner herein. 
 
 SECTION 7.07  Amendments.   
 
 This Agreement may be amended or supplemented only by an instrument in writing duly 
authorized, executed and delivered by each party hereto. 
 
 SECTION 7.08  Agreement Not To Be a Negotiable Instrument; Registration of 
Agreement and Assignment or Pledge of this Agreement. 
 
 (1) This Agreement (i) shall not operate or be construed as a negotiable instrument under 
the laws of the State of Alabama (including without limitation the Uniform Commercial Code as at any 
time in effect in Alabama) and (ii) may not be assigned, pledged, or transferred except in accordance 
with this Section. 
 
 (2) This Agreement shall be registered in the name of Owner, or any permitted assignee, on 
the books of City maintained for such purpose.  Owner, or any permitted assignee in whose name this 
Agreement shall be registered as provided herein, may, upon prior compliance with Section 7.06 (to the 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1� 11�

extent then applicable), assign or pledge any right hereunder or interest herein only upon (i) surrender 
of this Agreement to City, (ii) recordation of such assignment or pledge on such books, and (iii) 
endorsement of such assignment or pledge by City on the Registration of Ownership attached hereto.  
Owner, or any such permitted assignee, shall pay all expenses of City in connection with compliance 
with Section 7.06 and this Section. 
 
 (3) Each permitted assignee shall take this Agreement subject to all payments of the 
Annual Property Tax Reimbursement Amount that shall have been made hereunder, and all 
amendments, modifications and supplements that shall have been made hereto, prior to the date of 
registration of this Agreement in the name of such permitted assignee. 
 
 Section 7.09  No Joint Venture.   
 
 City and Owner agree this Agreement shall not operate or be construed to create a joint venture 
between or by City and Owner. 
 
 Section 7.10  Consent to Jurisdiction.   
 
 Owner agrees that it (and any successor entity or corporation by merger or consolidation) will 
continuously remain qualified to do business in the State of Alabama at all times during which this 
Agreement is in effect.  Both City and Owner, for themselves and their respective successors and 
assigns, (a) irrevocably agree that any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement shall be instituted only in the Circuit Court of Jefferson County, Alabama, and generally 
and unconditionally accept and irrevocably submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the aforesaid court 
and irrevocably agree to be bound by any final judgment rendered thereby from which no appeal has 
been taken or is available in connection with this Agreement, (b) irrevocably waive any objection either 
may have now or hereafter to the laying of the venue of any such suit, action or proceeding, including, 
without limitation, any objection based on the grounds of forum non conveniens, in the aforesaid court, 
(c) agree not to commence any action, suit or proceeding relating hereto except in the aforesaid court, 
and (d) irrevocably agree that all process, summons, notices or documents in any such proceedings in 
any such court may be effected by mailing a copy thereof by registered or certified mail (or any 
substantially similar form of mail), postage prepaid, to them at their respective addresses set forth in 
Section 7.05 or at such other address of which the other parties shall have been notified in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 7.05, such service being hereby acknowledged by City and Owner to be 
effective and binding service in every respect.  Nothing herein shall affect the right to serve process in 
any other manner permitted by law. 
 
 Section 7.11  Rights of Termination.   
 
 City and Owner agree that, anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding: 
 
 (1) Owner may, in its sole and absolute discretion, terminate this Agreement on __________, 
2014, if the Closing Conditions are not satisfied prior to or on such date;   
 
 (2) City may, in its sole and absolute discretion, terminate this Agreement on ____________, 
2014, if the Closing Conditions are not satisfied prior to or on such date.  
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1� 12�

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City has caused this Agreement to be executed in its name, under 
seal, and the same attested, all by officers thereof duly authorized thereunto, and Owner has executed 
this Agreement under seal, and the parties have caused this Agreement to be dated the date and year 
first above written. 
 
 
       CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 
       By        
         Mayor 
 
 
SEAL       By        
         City Manager 
 
ATTEST:       
  City Clerk 
 
 
 

NORTHPORT HOLDING, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company 
 
 
By:         (L.S.)  

     Its:        
 

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1�

REGISTRATION OF OWNERSHIP 
 
 
 In accordance with Section 7.08 of the Special Economic Development Agreement to which this 
Schedule is attached, this Agreement is registered in the name of the last owner hereof named below 
and such owner has all interests of the person named as Owner in such Agreement. 
 

Date of Registration Name of Registered Owner 
Signature of Authorized 

Officer of City 
   

Date of Closing Northport Holding, LLC _______________ 
  _______________ 

_______________ _______________ _______________ 
_______________ _______________ _______________ 
_______________ _______________ _______________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1 

EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT SITE 

 
 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1 

EXHIBIT B 

Request for Payment of Annual Property Tax Reimbursement Amount 
 
From: Northport Holding, LLC 
 
To: City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama  
 
Date: _______________, 20__ 
 
Re: Special Economic Development Agreement dated the Date of Delivery by City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama (the "City") and Northport Holding, LLC (the "Owner"). 
              
 
 

The undersigned, as Owner under the above Agreement, hereby requests payment to Owner 
by City of the Annual Property Tax Reimbursement Amount, to be determined by City as provided in 
the Agreement, for the following tax year: 

 
 ____________ 1, 20__ to ____________ 1, 20__ 
 

and in connection therewith does hereby represent, warrant and certify to City as follows: 
 
1. (a) The total amount paid by Owner as ad valorem taxes with respect to the 
Project for the above tax year was $________________. 
 
 (b) Attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the ad valorem tax bill for the 
Project for the above tax year, setting forth the assessed value of the Project and the total 
amount of ad valorem taxes due for such tax year. 
 
2. Owner is in full compliance with the agreements and covenants thereof under the 

Agreement and no Event of Default, or any event which upon notice, or lapse of time, or both shall 
become an Event of Default, has occurred and is continuing. 

 
3. The Agreement is in full force and effect. 
 
4. Owner is in full compliance with all applicable resolutions and regulations of City. 
 
Capitalized terms used herein shall have the respective meanings assigned in the above 

Agreement. 
 

  

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



02981915.1 

 
In Witness Whereof, the undersigned Owner has caused this instrument to be executed in its 

name, under seal, by an officer thereof duly authorized thereunto. 
 
 

Northport Holding, LLC 
as Owner 
 
 
By _______________________________________ 

Its _______________________________________ 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



�

02981915.1 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Form of Warrant 
              

THIS WARRANT, AND ANY INTEREST HEREIN, MAY ONLY BE TRANSFERRED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE WITHIN-REFERENCED AGREEMENT AND APPLICABLE 
FEDERAL AND STATE SECURITIES LAWS. 
              

THIS WARRANT DOES NOT BEAR INTEREST 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF ALABAMA 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT WARRANT 

(NORTHPORT HOLDING, LLC) 
 

No. R-1 

 DATED DATE: MATURITY DATE: 

 __________, 2014 Date of Termination 

City OF VESTAVIA HILLS, a municipal corporation organized and existing under and by 
virtue of the laws of the State of Alabama (the "City"), for value received, hereby acknowledges itself 
indebted to 

NORTHPORT HOLDING, LLC 

or registered assigns (collectively the "Warrantholder") in a principal amount not exceeding 

__________ MILLION __________ THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($__________) 

as determined pursuant to the within-referenced Agreement, and hereby orders and directs the 
Finance Director of City to pay, to the Warrantholder or as provided in the Agreement, solely from 
the amounts deposited in the Warrant Fund hereinafter designated, said principal amount, without 
interest, as provided in the within-referenced Agreement, until and including the Maturity Date 
specified above. 

  

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



�

02981915.1 

Authority for Issuance 

This Warrant is issued pursuant to the authority of the Constitution and laws of the State of 
Alabama, including particularly and without limitation Amendment No. 772 of the Constitution of 
Alabama of 1901, as amended (collectively the "Enabling Law"), and that certain Special Economic 
Development Agreement dated the above Dated Date (the "Agreement") by City and Northport 
Holding, LLC. 

Capitalized terms used hereinbefore and hereinafter without definition shall have the 
respective meanings assigned thereto in the Agreement. 

Reference is made to the provisions of the Agreement, to and by which all of which provisions 
the Warrantholder, by acceptance of this Warrant, assents and agrees to be bound. 

Payment 

This Warrant is payable solely from amounts made available as the Total City Commitment 
on the terms and as provided in Article 4 of the Agreement. 

The City has established a special fund designated "Warrant Fund" (the "Warrant Fund") for 
the payment of this Warrant and has obligated itself to pay or cause to be paid into the Warrant 
Fund sums sufficient to provide for the payment of this Warrant as provided in the Agreement. 

Payment of this Warrant shall be made as provided in the Agreement; provided the final 
payment of principal of this Warrant shall be made only upon presentation and surrender of this 
Warrant to City for cancellation. 

Each payment of principal made on this Warrant shall be reflected by the notations made by 
City on its internal records (which may be kept by computer or by other means determined by City) 
and City is hereby authorized so to record thereon all such payments.  All payments of principal on 
this Warrant and the aggregate unpaid principal amount of this Warrant reflected on the internal 
records of City (whether by computer or otherwise) shall be rebuttably presumptive evidence of the 
principal amount of this Warrant outstanding and unpaid. 

All payments of principal of this Warrant by City shall be made at par in such coin or 
currency of the United States of America as at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of 
public and private debts, and shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability of City 
upon this Warrant to the extent of the amounts so paid. 

The person in whose name this Warrant is registered shall be deemed and regarded as the 
absolute owner hereof for all purposes. 

  

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



�

02981915.1 

Registration and Transfer 

This Warrant is registered as to principal and interest in the name of the Warrantholder on 
the book of registration maintained for that purpose by City. 

This Warrant may be transferred only upon written direction of the registered owner or his 
legal representative, addressed to City, presentation of this Warrant to City accompanied by a 
written instrument of transfer, satisfactory to City, duly executed by the registered owner or his 
attorney duly authorized in writing, and compliance with Section 7.06 and Section 7.08 of the 
Agreement.  Upon presentation of this Warrant to City for transfer, City shall record such transfer 
on the said book of registration and execute and deliver, in exchange for this Warrant, a new 
warrant or warrants of like tenor hereof, registered in the name of the transferee in an aggregate 
principal amount equal to the unpaid or unredeemed portion of the principal of this Warrant.  No 
charge shall be made for the privilege of transfer, but the registered owner of this Warrant 
requesting any such transfer shall pay any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid 
with respect thereto. 

 
General 

No covenant or agreement contained in this Warrant or in the Agreement shall be deemed to 
be a covenant or agreement of any officer, agent, employee, or member of the governing body of City 
in the individual capacity thereof and none of such parties or persons nor any officer executing this 
Warrant shall be liable personally on this Warrant or be subject to any personal liability or 
accountability by reason of the issuance of this Warrant. 

It is hereby recited, certified and declared that the indebtedness evidenced and ordered paid 
by this Warrant is lawfully due without condition, abatement or offset of any description, that this 
Warrant has been registered in the manner provided by law, that this Warrant represents a valid 
claim against the Warrant Fund, that all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution 
and laws of the State of Alabama to happen, exist and be performed precedent to and in the 
execution, registration and issuance of this Warrant, the adoption of the resolution approving the 
Agreement, and the execution and delivery of the Agreement, have happened, do exist and have been 
performed in due time, form and manner as so required by law and that the principal amount of this 
Warrant, together with all other indebtedness of City, are within every debt and other limit 
prescribed by the Constitution and laws of the State of Alabama. 

  

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



�

02981915.1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City, acting by and through City Council of City, as the governing 
body thereof, has caused this Warrant to be executed in its name and on its behalf by the Mayor of 
City, has caused its corporate seal to be affixed hereto and the same attested by City Clerk of City, 
and has caused this Warrant to be dated the date and year first above written. 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

By ______________________________________ 
         Mayor 

S E A L 

Attest:        
   City Clerk 

 
  

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



�

02981915.1 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE 

Date of Closing:  _______________, 2014 

The undersigned hereby certifies that this Warrant has been duly registered as a conditional 
claim against City of Vestavia Hills, in the State of Alabama, and the Warrant Fund referred to 
herein, on the Date of Closing referenced above. 

 

___________________________________________ 
Finance Director of City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



�

02981915.1 

VALIDATION CERTIFICATE 
 
 

 Validated and confirmed by judgment of the Circuit Court of Jefferson County, State of 
Alabama entered on the ______ day of _____________, 2014. 
 
 

/s/       
Clerk of Circuit Court of Jefferson County,  
State of Alabama 
 

 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



�

02981915.1 

Assignment 

For value received, ________________________hereby sell(s), assign(s) and transfer(s) unto  
____________________________, this Warrant and hereby irrevocably constitute(s) and appoint(s)   
___________________________ its attorney to transfer this Warrant on the books of the within named 
City with full power of substitution in the premises. 

Dated:       

 
NOTE:  The name signed to this assignment must 
correspond with the name of the payee written on the 
face of the within warrant in all respects, without 
alteration, enlargement or change whatsoever. 

    

Signature Guaranteed: 

___________________________ 
(Bank or Trust Company) 

___________________________ 
By_________________________ 
   (Authorized Officer) 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4625



RESOLUTION NUMBER 4626 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING BIDS FOR A PROPOSED PEDESTRIAN 
BRIDGE AND IMPROVEMENTS AT MCCALLUM PARK 

WHEREAS, on July 22, 2014 the City of Vestavia Hills publicly read aloud bids 

submitted for bid packages for construction of a pedestrian bridge and certain other improvement 

alternates at McCallum Park; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Services Director has reviewed the bids and recommended the 

following bid package and alternates to be accepted: 

(a) Base bid package Submitted by Sprouse Construction for pedestrian bridge at a 
cost not to exceed $248,960; and 

(b) Alternates 1, 2 3, and 4 to be awarded resulting in alternate bid amount of $59,500 
including base bid (Alternate 1 - $24,000; Alternate 2 – $2,500; Alternate 3 - 
$8,000; and Alternate 4 - $25,000); and 

WHEREAS, in a memorandum dated August 7, 2014 to the City Manager, the Public 

Services Director detailed the bid package results and alternates in an official tabulation along 

with recommendation for acceptance as stated above, a copy of which is marked as “Exhibit A” 

attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4626 as though written fully therein; 

and

WHEREAS, the Public Services Director indicated that the total contract cost of the 

project would not exceed $308,460; a portion of which would be reimbursed through two grants 

of $50,000 each (total $100,000) and a $100,000 donation from the Park and Recreation 

Foundation with the remaining $108,469 to be expensed to Capital Projects Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the recommendations set forth by the 

Public Services Director and has recommended acceptance of said base bid and alternates as 

detailed in “Exhibit A;” and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to follow the 

recommendations of the City Manager and the Public Services Director and accept said bids as 

detailed above. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The following bid packages as detailed in Exhibit A attached and recommended by the 

City Manager and the Public Services Director are hereby accepted as follows: 



a. Base bid package Submitted by Sprouse Construction for pedestrian bridge at a 
cost not to exceed $248,960; and 

b. Alternates 1, 2 3, and 4 to be awarded resulting in alternate bid amount of $59,500 
including base bid (Alternate 1 - $24,000; Alternate 2 – $2,500; Alternate 3 - 
$8,000; and Alternate 4 ($25,000); and 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver all documents including, 

but not limited to contracts (following review and approval by the City Attorney) and 

requisitions pursuant to said bid detail up to the aforesaid amounts detailed in Exhibit A; 

and

3. This Resolution Number 4626 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



City of Vestavia Hills Public Services 
513 Montgomery Highway

Vestavia Hills, AL 35216
205.978.0150

Interoffice Memo 
August 8, 2014 

TO:    Jeff Downes 
  City Manager 

FROM: Brian C. Davis bcd
  Public Services Director 

RE:  McCallum Park 

As part of the Healthy Living Campaign in a partnership with the Vestavia Hills 
Parks and Recreation Foundation, we received bids for a bridge crossing at 
McCallum Park and trail expansion. 

We received 3 bids for the base bid, which is the bridge across Little Shades 
Creek, and 6 alternates, which include the following: 

� Additional 500 linear feet of trail 
� Additional 1 acre of clearing 
� Composite wood decking for the bridge 
� Low water crossing 
� Rock seating area around bridge foundation 
� Additional gravel to the parking area 

Please see attached bid summary.  I am recommending that we accept Sprouse 
Construction base bid and alternates 1 through 4 at a total cost of $308,460.00.  
We have 2 grants of $50,000 each for a total of $100,000, and as stated above 
our partnership with the foundation has a match of an additional $100,000.  The 
city will need $108,460 to cover the remaining amount. 

Please let me know if you have any questions, and I look forward to discussing 
with you further. 

Attachment: Bid Summary 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4626



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4626



Resolution Number 4627 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4627 

 A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING 
THE GENERAL FUND BUDGET, A SPECIAL 
REVENUE FUND BUDGET AND A CAPITAL 
PROJECT FUND BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING 
OCTOBER 1, 2014 UNTIL SEPTEMBER 30, 2015. 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared and presented a “general fund 

budget” which has been reviewed and amended by the City Council for said period 

reflecting anticipated expenditures in the amount of $34,660,425 including transfers out, 

to be effective for the period beginning October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015; 

and

WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared a “special fund budget” for said 

period reflecting anticipated expenditures in the amount of $2,877,994 including transfers 

from the General Fund, to be effective for the period beginning October 1, 2014, through 

September 30, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has prepared a “capital projects fund budget” for 

said period reflecting expenditures in the amount of $1,120,579 to be effective for the 

period beginning October 1, 2014, through September 30, 2015. 

WHEREAS, Title 11-43-57, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides as follows: 

Annual appropriation of funds for expenditures of all 
departments and interest on indebtedness:  In all cities, the 
Council shall appropriate the sums necessary for the 
expenditures of the several City departments and for the 
interest on its bonded and other indebtedness, not 
exceeding in the aggregate within ten (10) percent of its 
estimated expenses, and such City Council shall not 
appropriate in the aggregate an amount in excess of its 
annual legally authorized revenue.  But, nothing in this 
section shall prevent such cities from anticipating their 
revenues for the year for which such appropriation was 
made, or from contracting for temporary loans as provided 
in the applicable provision of this title, or from bonding or 



Resolution Number 4627 
Page 2 

refunding their outstanding indebtedness or from 
appropriating anticipated revenue at any time for the 
current expenses of the City and interest on the bonded and 
other indebtedness of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$31,195,382, of the municipal “general fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills for 

fiscal year 2014-2015 upon the terms conditions and provisions set forth below; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$2,590,194, of the municipal “special revenue fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills 

for fiscal year 2014-2015 upon the terms, conditions and provisions set forth below; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council agrees to approve and adopt ninety (90) percent, or 

$1,008,521, of the “capital project fund budget” for the City of Vestavia Hills for fiscal 

year 2014-2015 upon the terms, conditions and provisions set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

   1.  The municipal “general fund budget” for the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City Council is 

hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $31,195,382, which said 

amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 

$34,660,425 multiplied by 90% equals 
$31,195,382; and

   2.  The municipal “special revenue fund budget” for the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City 

Council is hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $2,590,194 

which said amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated 

expenses:



Resolution Number 4627 
Page 3 

$2,877,994 multiplied by 90% equals 
$2,590,194; and 

   3.  The “capital projects fund budget” for the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, prepared by the City Manager and submitted to the City Council is 

hereby approved and adopted to the extent of expenditures of $1,008,521which said 

amount is not exceeding the aggregate within ten (10) percent of the estimated expenses: 

$1,120,579 multiplied by 90% equals 
$1,008,521; and 

   3.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend the sum of 

$31,195,382 from the General Fund, $2,590,194 from the Special Revenue Fund and 

$1,008,521 from the Capital Projects Fund for municipal expenses for the period 

beginning October 1, 2014, and ending September 30, 2015. 

   4.  Copies of the budget outlines are attached hereto, marked as 

Exhibit “A” and incorporated into this Resolution by reference as though set out fully 

herein.

5.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

approval and adoption. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 25th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



R
EV

EN
U

E:
G

EN
ER

A
L

SP
EC

IA
L

C
A

PI
TA

L
TO

TA
L

S
TA

TE
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

14
5,

01
1

29
0,

65
0

43
5,

66
1

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

14
,0

84
,6

83
14

,0
84

,6
83

C
IT

Y
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

19
,8

24
,0

67
19

,8
24

,0
67

P
A

R
K

S
 &

 R
E

C
R

E
A

TI
O

N
38

3,
50

0
38

3,
50

0
4 

C
E

N
T 

G
A

S
O

LI
N

E
 T

A
X

15
6,

60
0

15
6,

60
0

5 
C

E
N

T 
G

A
S

O
LI

N
E

 T
A

X
76

,0
20

76
,0

20
7 

C
E

N
T 

G
A

S
O

LI
N

E
 T

A
X

88
7,

00
0

88
7,

00
0

E
-9

11
 F

U
N

D
S

73
1,

86
0

73
1,

86
0

C
O

U
R

T 
&

 C
O

R
R

E
C

TI
O

N
S

34
3,

60
4

34
3,

60
4

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

 S
TA

TE
 A

ID
18

,6
87

18
,6

87
LI

B
R

A
R

Y
 B

O
O

K
S

 &
 D

O
N

A
TI

O
N

S
29

6,
50

0
29

6,
50

0
V

E
H

IC
LE

 T
A

G
S

 / 
A

D
M

IN
IS

TR
A

TI
O

N
12

5,
10

0
12

5,
10

0

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
E 

$3
4,

43
7,

26
1

$2
,6

35
,3

71
$2

90
,6

50
$3

7,
36

3,
28

2

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
VE

ST
A

VI
A

 H
IL

LS
A

N
N

U
A

L 
B

U
D

G
ET

 
SU

M
M

A
R

Y 
O

F 
"A

LL
 F

U
N

D
S"

 R
EV

EN
U

E 
&

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

FI
SC

A
L 

YE
A

R
 E

N
D

IN
G

 S
EP

TE
M

B
ER

 3
0,

 2
01

5

E
xh

ib
it 

A
 - 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

N
o.

 4
62

7



C
IT

Y 
O

F 
VE

ST
A

VI
A

 H
IL

LS
A

N
N

U
A

L 
B

U
D

G
ET

 
SU

M
M

A
R

Y 
O

F 
"A

LL
 F

U
N

D
S"

 R
EV

EN
U

E 
&

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

FI
SC

A
L 

YE
A

R
 E

N
D

IN
G

 S
EP

TE
M

B
ER

 3
0,

 2
01

5

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
ES

:
G

EN
ER

A
L

SP
EC

IA
L

C
A

PI
TA

L
TO

TA
L

N
O

N
 D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
TA

L
7,

05
7,

67
3

7,
05

7,
67

3
C

IT
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

71
,6

71
71

,6
71

M
A

Y
O

R
 &

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

1,
10

5,
03

6
6,

29
1

1,
11

1,
32

7
C

IT
Y

 C
LE

R
K

32
7,

00
4

6,
47

1
33

3,
47

5
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L 

C
O

M
P

LE
X

25
8,

97
7

25
8,

97
7

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 / 

TE
C

H
N

O
LO

G
Y

68
4,

95
7

72
,8

75
75

7,
83

2
P

O
LI

C
E

7,
17

8,
39

8
36

8,
86

6
7,

54
7,

26
4

FI
R

E
8,

95
9,

74
4

47
4,

98
9

9,
43

4,
73

3
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

A
FE

TY
 &

 IN
S

P
E

C
TI

O
N

S
38

5,
80

9
38

5,
80

9
P

U
B

LI
C

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
5,

83
4,

12
6

18
4,

79
6

6,
01

8,
92

2
C

IT
Y

 G
A

R
A

G
E

29
3,

27
9

29
3,

27
9

P
U

B
LI

C
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
1,

80
3,

82
0

6,
29

1
1,

81
0,

11
1

4 
C

E
N

T 
G

A
S

O
LI

N
E

 T
A

X
15

6,
60

0
15

6,
60

0
5 

C
E

N
T 

G
A

S
O

LI
N

E
 T

A
X

76
,0

20
76

,0
20

7 
C

E
N

T 
G

A
S

O
LI

N
E

 T
A

X
1,

01
6,

74
0

1,
01

6,
74

0
E

-9
11

 F
U

N
D

S
82

0,
35

2
82

0,
35

2
C

O
U

R
T 

&
 C

O
R

R
E

C
TI

O
N

S
36

3,
86

0
36

3,
86

0
LI

B
R

A
R

Y
 S

TA
TE

 A
ID

18
,6

87
18

,6
87

LI
B

R
A

R
Y

 B
O

O
K

S
 &

 D
O

N
A

TI
O

N
S

31
6,

84
2

31
6,

84
2

V
E

H
IC

LE
 T

A
G

S
 / 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

O
N

10
8,

89
3

10
8,

89
3

SU
B

-T
O

TA
L 

EX
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
ES

$3
3,

96
0,

49
4

$2
,8

77
,9

94
$1

,1
20

,5
79

$3
7,

95
9,

06
7

TR
A

N
SF

ER
-O

U
T:

   
   

S
pe

ci
al

 F
un

ds
 (f

ro
m

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d)
29

,3
88

29
,3

88
   

   
C

ap
ita

l R
es

er
ve

 F
un

d 
(fr

om
 G

F 
- S

al
es

 T
ax

 %
)

67
0,

54
3

67
0,

54
3

TO
TA

L 
- T

R
A

N
SF

ER
-O

U
T

$6
99

,9
31

$6
99

,9
31

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
$3

4,
66

0,
42

5
$2

,8
77

,9
94

$1
,1

20
,5

79
$3

8,
65

8,
99

8

E
xh

ib
it 

A
 - 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

N
o.

 4
62

7



C
IT

Y 
O

F 
VE

ST
A

VI
A

 H
IL

LS
A

N
N

U
A

L 
B

U
D

G
ET

 
SU

M
M

A
R

Y 
O

F 
"A

LL
 F

U
N

D
S"

 R
EV

EN
U

E 
&

 E
XP

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

FI
SC

A
L 

YE
A

R
 E

N
D

IN
G

 S
EP

TE
M

B
ER

 3
0,

 2
01

5

O
TH

ER
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

SO
U

R
C

ES
:

G
EN

ER
A

L
SP

EC
IA

L
C

A
PI

TA
L

TO
TA

L
TR

A
N

S
FE

R
-IN

:
   

   
S

pe
ci

al
 F

un
ds

 (f
ro

m
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d)

29
,3

88
29

,3
88

   
   

C
ap

ita
l I

te
m

s 
(u

se
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

ed
 2

01
5 

C
ap

ita
l R

es
er

ve
 F

un
ds

)
67

0,
54

3
67

0,
54

3
TO

TA
L 

- O
TH

ER
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

SO
U

R
C

ES
$0

$2
9,

38
8

$6
70

,5
43

$6
99

,9
31

R
EV

EN
U

E 
O

VE
R

 / 
(U

N
D

ER
) E

XP
EN

D
IT

U
R

ES
($

22
3,

16
4)

($
21

3,
23

5)
($

15
9,

38
6)

($
59

5,
78

5)

U
SE

 O
F 

R
ES

ER
VE

S 
/ F

U
N

D
 B

A
LA

N
C

E
$2

23
,1

64
$2

13
,2

35
$1

59
,3

86
$5

95
,7

85

R
EP

O
R

T 
B

A
LA

N
C

E
$0

$0
$0

$0

E
xh

ib
it 

A
 - 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

N
o.

 4
62

7



Resolution Number 4628 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4628 

A RESOLUTION ELECTING TO PROVIDE A ONE-TIME BONUS TO 
CITY RETIREES PURSUANT TO ALABAMA ACT # 2014-429 

WHEREAS, at the last legislative session of the Alabama Legislature, the State of 

Alabama enacted Act Number 2014-429 which provided a one-time lump sum payment to 

retirees of the Retirement System of Alabama (“RSA”) equivalent to $2 per month for each year 

of service or $300, whichever is greater; and 

WHEREAS, if approved, the RSA will pay the bonuses to retirees up from on October 

2015 and allow Cities to pay back the employer contribution throughout the next fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the bonus calculations and historical 

information of retiree increases throughout the years and determined that the one-time bonus 

would sincerely benefit City retirees in assisting them to meet escalating costs in a currently 

declining economy; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed the City’s revenues and expenditures and 

recommended that the one-time bonus be given in the estimated amount of $57,646; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council has reviewed the recommendation of the City 

Manager and determined it is in the best public interest to approve said recommendation and 

recognizing retirees for the unwavering services that they provided to the City during their years 

of service. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to fund the 2014 retiree 

bonus for retirees of the City of Vestavia Hills pursuant to Act No. 2014-429; and 



Resolution Number 4628 
Page 2 

2. The City Manager shall deliver a copy of this Resolution Number 4628 to the State of 

Alabama prior to the August 31, 2014 deadline; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4628 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 25th day of August, 2014. 

      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4628


	AGenda
	July 28, 2014 WS
	July 28, 2014 Minutes
	Resolution 4613
	Resolution 4614
	Ordinance 2522
	Resolution 4615
	Ordinance 2523
	Resolution 4616
	Ordinance 2524
	Resolution 4617
	Ordinance 2525
	Resolution 4620
	Resolution 4621
	Resolution 4623
	Resolution 4622
	Ordinance 2527
	Resolution 4624
	Ordinance 2526
	Resolution 4625
	Resolution 4626
	Resolution 4627

